
�
�

v1�2015�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� Regeneration�Committee�

Date� Tuesday�3�November�2015�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall,�The�
Queen's�Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at:�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee�
�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman)�
Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
James�Cleverly�AM�MP�

Andrew�Dismore�AM�
Len�Duvall�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chairman�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�
business�listed�below.��

Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�
Monday�26�October�2015�

�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�Joanna�Brown/Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers;�Telephone:�020�7983�6559;�
email:�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�/�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�Lisa�Lam,�External�Relations�Officer;�Telephone:�020�7983�4067.�
If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�
end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Regeneration�Committee�
Tuesday�3�November�2015�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chairman's�Announcements��
�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

Contact:��Joanna�Brown,�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�Teresa�Young,�

teresa.young@london.gov.uk�020�7983�6559�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a)�� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;�

�

(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and�

�

(c)���� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�

which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�

of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�

Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�

action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�
�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�44)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Committee�held�on�13�October�2015,�to�be�signed�by�the�Chairman�as�a�correct�
record.�
�

� The�appendix�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�9�to�44�is�attached�for�Members�and�officers�only�

but�is�available�from�the�following�areas�of�the�GLA’s�website:�

www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee�
�
�

� �
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�45�-�46)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:��Joanna�Brown,�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�Teresa�Young,�

teresa.young@london.gov.uk�020�7983�6559�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�action�arising�from�the�meeting�on�13�

October�2015.���
�
�

5 Intensification�Areas�(Pages�47�-�50)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk;�0207�983�4942�
�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�report�as�background�to�a�discussion�with�invited�guests�regarding�

Intensification�Areas,�and�note�the�discussion;�and�

�

(b) Delegate�authority�to�the�Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair,�to�

agree�the�arrangements�for�the�Committee’s�site�visit�to�an�Intensification�

Area�on�1�December�2015.�
�
�

6 Regeneration�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�51�-�54)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman,�scrutiny@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4942�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�work�programme�for�the�remainder�of�

the�2015/16�Assembly�year.�
�
�

7 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Regeneration�Committee�is�scheduled�for�Tuesday,�2�February�2016�

at�10am�in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�
�

8 Any�Other�Business�the�Chairman�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v7/2015�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
3
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
Kemi�Badenoch�AM� �
Mayor�John�Biggs�AM� Mayor�of�Tower�Hamlets�(LB);�Member,�LLDC�Board�
Andrew�Boff�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�

Authorities�(Council�of�Europe)�
James�Cleverly�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Tom�Copley�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Deputy�Mayor;�Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�

London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� �
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
LLDC�–�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation;�MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�

Page 2



        

�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�
knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�

was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�
namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�

would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�

decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�
make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�
from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�

disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�
at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�

out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-
line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�
the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�

are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�
the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�

hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�
relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�

regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�
any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications




4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�



5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

Page 3



        

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Joanna�Brown�and�Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6559�
E-mail:� joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 Regeneration
Committee

Date:
 Tuesday
13
October
2015

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Committee
Room
5,
City
Hall,
The


Queen's
Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:



http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration�




�
Present:

�
Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman)�
Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
James�Cleverly�AM�MP�
Andrew�Dismore�AM�
Len�Duvall�AM�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chairman's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1� There�were�no�apologies�for�absence.�





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�



2.1� Resolved:




That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at

Agenda
Item
2,
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests,
be
noted.







�
�
�

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
13
October
2015


�

�
�

3 Minutes
(Item
3)�



3.1� Resolved:�
�

That
the
minutes
of
the
Regeneration
Committee
held
on
2
July
2015
be
signed
by

the
Chairman
as
a
correct
record.�





4 Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
4)�




4.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

4.2� Resolved:�

�

That
the
completed
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the
Committee,
as


listed
in
the
report,
be
noted.






5 Action
Taken
Under
Delegated
Authority
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

5.2� Resolved:�

�

(a) That
the
recent
action
taken
by
the
Chairman,
Gareth
Bacon
AM,
under


delegated
authority,
namely
to
write
to
the
Mayor
to
request
a
more
detailed


response
to
the
Committee’s
recommendations
contained
in
its
report,


The
Regeneration
Game,
be
noted.





(b) That
the
recent
action
taken
by
the
Chairman,
Gareth
Bacon
AM,
under


delegated
authority,
namely
to
agree
the
scope
and
terms
of
reference
for
an


investigation
into
Business
Improvement
Districts,
be
noted.





(c) That
the
response
from
the
Mayor
(attached
at
Appendix
2
to
the
report)
to


the
Chairman’s
letter
requesting
a
more
detailed
response
to
the
Committee’s


recommendations
in
its
report
The
Regeneration
Game,
be
noted.






6 Business
Improvement
Districts
(Item
6)�




6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�to�the�following�guests�on�Business�Improvement�Districts�(BIDs):�

• Dr�Julie�Grail,�Chief�Executive,�British�BIDs;�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
13
October
2015


�

�
�

• Debbie�Jackson,�Assistant�Director�–�Regeneration,�Greater�London�Authority;�

• Anna�Minton,�Writer,�Journalist�and�Reader�in�Architecture,�University�of�East�London;��

• Ros�Morgan,�Chief�Executive,�Kingstonfirst�BID;�and�

• Councillor�Guy�Nicholson,�Cabinet�Member�for�Regeneration,�London�Borough�of�

Hackney.�

6.2� The�Chairman�welcomed�the�guests�to�the�meeting.�

�

6.3� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.�

6.4� During�the�discussion,�Dr�Julie�Grail,�Chief�Executive,�British�BIDS,�offered�to�share�British�

BID’s�response�to�the�Department�for�Communities�and�Local�Government’s�consultation,�

Review�of�British�Improvement�Districts.�

6.5� At�the�conclusion�of�the�meeting,�the�Chairman�thanked�the�guests�for�their�attendance�and�

contributions�to�the�meeting.�

6.6� Resolved:


(a)
 That
the
report
and
discussion
be
noted.





(b)
 That
the
summary
of
the
site
visits
to
Brixton
BID
and
Baker
Street
Quarter


BID
on
2
September
2015
to
support
this
investigation,
attached
at


Appendix
1
to
the
report,
be
noted.






7 Regeneration
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
7)�




7.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

7.2� Resolved:





(a) That
the
updated
work
programme
for
the
remainder
of
the
2015/16


Assembly
Year
be
agreed.





(b) That
the
proposals
to
receive
a
briefing
on
Intensification
Areas
at
the


Committee’s
meeting
on
3
November
2015,
and
to
use
the
meeting
slot
on


1
December
2015
for
a
site
visit
to
an
Intensification
Area,
be
agreed.





(c) That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chairman,
in
consultation
with
the


Deputy
Chair
and
other
Members
of
the
Committee,
to
agree
the
Committee’s


output
arising
from
its
scrutiny
investigation
of
transport-led
regeneration.








Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
13
October
2015


�

�
�

8 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
8)�



8.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�was�scheduled�for�Tuesday,�3�November�2015�in�

Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�





9 Any
Other
Business
the
Chairman
Considers
Urgent
(Item
9)�




9.1� There�was�no�other�business�the�Chairman�considered�urgent.�





10 Close
of
Meeting�




10.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.37pm�





�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chair�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 Joanna�Brown/Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers;��

Telephone:�020�7983�6559;�email:�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�/�
teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

`�

Page 8



�

�

Appendix 1 
Regeneration
Committee
–
13
October
2015


Transcript
of
Agenda
Item
6
–
Business
Improvement
Districts

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Item�6�is�Business�Improvement�Districts�(BIDs).��Can�I�welcome�all�five�of�

our�guests�this�morning?��If�you�could�just�introduce�yourselves?��Then�we�will�get�on�with�the�questions.�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

I�am�Ros�and�I�am�the�Chief�Executive,�Kingstonfirst�

BID.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�am�

Anna�Minton.��I�am�a�writer�and�a�journalist�and�I�am�Reader�in�Architecture�at�the�University�of�East�London.��I�

wrote�a�book�called�Ground�Control�in�2009,�which�includes�a�chapter�on�BIDs�and�takes�quite�a�critical�stance.�

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
Greater
London
Authority):��I�am�Debbie�Jackson,�

the�Assistant�Director�of�Regeneration�here�at�City�Hall.�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
London
Borough
of
Hackney):��I�am�

Guy�Nicholson,�Councillor�and�Cabinet�Member�for�Regeneration�in�the�London�Borough�[LB]�of�Hackney�and�

currently�[we�do�not�have�any]�BIDs�within�[Hackney].�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��I�am�Julie�Grail,�Chief�Executive�of�British�BIDs.��We�are�

concerned�with�BIDs�all�the�way�around�the�country.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you�very�much.��Welcome�to�all�of�you.���

�

The�first�question�I�am�going�to�put�to�Ros�because�I�believe�Kingstonfirst�was�the�first�BID�in�London.��Is�that�

correct?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

That�is�right,�yes.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��What�was�the�driving�force�behind�setting�it�up�in�2004?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

I�have�prepared�a�few�notes�because,�as�Julie�[Grail]�

will�tell�you,�I�can�talk�for�quite�a�long�time.��I�am�happy�to�go�through�it�and�then�you�can�stop�me�anytime�

you�want.�

�

First�of�all,�I�thought�I�would�give�you�a�bit�of�context�about�Kingston.��It�is�an�outer�London�borough.��It�is�the�

Royal�Borough�of�Kingston�upon�Thames.��The�first�king�of�England�was�crowned��there�and�the�subsequent�

six�kings.��It�has�a�very�strong�retail�offer,�a�flourishing�night-time�economy,�art�café�culture,�great�heritage�

and�of�course�the�beautiful�setting�of�the�River�Thames.��Today,�it�is�the�safest�London�borough,�it�has�the�

highest�occupancy�rates�in�the�United�Kingdom�(UK)�and�it�is�the�third-best�performing�retail�centre�outside�

central�London.��That�is�where�we�are�today�with�Kingston,�but�we�were�not�always�that�way.�

�

That�is�really�where�the�story�begins.��We�had�a�very�strong�town�centre�management�partnership�over�the�

1990s�and�they�were�relatively�successful.��However,�as�many�town�centre�managers�-�including�me�-�back�in�

the�day�will�tell�you:�you�can�have�a�lot�of�support,�a�lot�of�goodwill�and�a�lot�of�fantastic�ideas�in�terms�of�how�

to�improve�a�trading�environment�-�a�town,�a�high�street�or�a�place�-�but�without�money�there�is�a�limit�to�how�

far�you�can�succeed.��Therein�lies�one�of�the�key�problems.��In�my�experience�-�not�in�Kingston�but�elsewhere�-�

Page 9



�

you�had�the�same�group�of�business�coming�forward�and�helping�to�fund�these�initiatives.��Really,�that�was�not�

a�sustainable�model�for�funding�in�the�town�centre.�

�

Therefore,�Kingston�took�the�lead�and�became�the�first�BID�in�the�UK�and�now�we�have�in�excess�of�200�--�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Can�I�just�ask�you�at�that�point:�who�drove�the�creation�of�the�BID,�the�

businesses�or�the�Council?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

It�came�from�the�businesses.��The�partnership�existed.��

They�set�themselves�up�as�a�limited�company�and�it�was�primarily�retail-led�initially�but�they�had�the�support�of�

the�local�authority.��We�needed�both�parties�to�come�together�and�agree.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��It�was�the�businesses�that�initiated�it?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

It�was�the�businesses�that�initiated�it,�absolutely,�yes.�

�

Just�as�a�bit�of�background�on�Kingstonfirst:�we�have�almost�1,000�business�properties�in�the�town�centre,�

which�is�a�relatively�small�town�centre.��We�have�no�threshold�and�so�every�single�business�contributes�and�gets�

a�say.��We�charge�a�1%�levy.��It�is�primarily�retail-led.��About�43%�of�the�members�are�retail�and�they�

contribute�about�64%�of�the�overall�levy�income.��That�generates�about�£900,000�a�year�to�spend.��That�

makes�up�about�56%�of�our�overall�income,�but�it�is�supplemented�by�other�income,�which�makes�up�about�

44%.�

�

That�is�crucial,�actually.��I�remember�as�a�town�centre�manager,�when�I�needed�money,�I�could�not�get�it�

because�I�did�not�have�any.��However,�when�you�have�money,�it�is�much�easier�to�secure�funding�and�support�

because�you�are�able�to�match�it,�you�are�able�to�partner�and�you�are�able�to�draw�alliances.�

�

From�Kingstonfirst’s�perspective,�we�followed�what�I�would�describe�as�a�traditional�route.��Actually,�it�was�the�

only�route�because�we�were�the�first�in�the�UK,�but�it�was�a�traditional�route.��In�the�first�five-year�term,�we�

concentrated�on�the�short-term�tangible�projects�that�focused�around�making�the�area�safer,�making�it�cleaner�

and�making�it�greener�and�really�focused�on�place-management,�if�you�like.�

�

As�we�progressed�into�BID�2�and�certainly�into�BID�3,�we�started�to�realise�that�we�were�able�to�prove�we�could�

take�on�a�much�greater�role�and�a�much�greater�remit�and�we�were�able�to�demonstrate�place�leadership.��In�

fact,�for�BID�2,�we�really�focused�on�what�I�would�describe�as�‘total�town’�marketing.��It�was�not�individual�

organisations�trying�to�promote�Kingston�as�the�place�to�come;�it�was�this�independent�company�-�ie�

Kingstonfirst�-�promoting�Kingston�and�promoting�it�as�a�good�place�for�all�whether�you�are�retail,�office,�etc.�

�

Then,�by�BID�3,�we�really�started�to�establish�ourselves�as�a�collective�voice�and�really�began�to�recognise�the�

value�of�having�1,000�businesses’�views�and�the�influence�and�impact�that�that�could�have�on�decisions�being�

made�about�the�area�and�the�surrounding�borough,�for�that�matter.��We�also�recognised�that�we�could�help�to�

reduce�operational�costs�for�businesses�on�the�ground�by�joint�procurement�or�group�purchasing�of�anything�

from�energy�to�recycling.��We�were�able�to�demonstrate�to�businesses�that�return�on�investment,�“You�pay�us�X�

amount�of�levy�every�year�and�though�this�one�service”�-�for�argument’s�sake,�say�it�is�recycling�-�“we�are�able�

to�save�money�off�your�bottom�line”.��There�are�lots�of�good�examples�right�across�the�BID�community�that�can�

demonstrate�that.�

�

We�started�from�the�ground�up,�but�now�at�Kingstonfirst�we�have�a�track�record�of�making�things�happen,�

which�is�the�key.��You�can�talk�a�lot�and�plan�for�a�long�time,�but�one�of�the�key�values,�I�believe,�in�BIDs�iswe�

Page 10



�

can�make�things�happen.��Kingstonfirst�is�recognised�as�a�credible�contributor�to�the�success�of�the�Kingston�

that�I�just�described.�

�

We�have�established�effective�partnerships�and�relationships�with�the�local�authority�and�other�partners�and�

our�business�community.��We�are�at�the�table�for�critical�decisions�being�made.��I�sit�on�

the�Strategic�Partnership�as�well�as�the�Safer�Strategic�Partnership,�ensuring�that�the�business�voice�is�part�of�

that�conversation.��We�collaborate�on�policies�and�planning�and�we�influence�now�the�growth�and�regeneration�

of�Kingston�town�centre.�

�

Just�to�give�you�another�example�of�how�far�we�have�come,�we�now�deliver�a�number�of�services�on�behalf�of�

the�local�authority,�which�I�will�give�you�an�example�of�and�explain�but�I�have�to�state�that�this�was�correct�and�

proper�for�Kingston�at�the�time.��It�may�not�be�correct�and�proper�for�all�BIDs�but�it�worked�for�Kingston.��Five�

years�ago,�we�negotiated�the�transfer�of�a�number�of�services,�which�included�community�events,�open-space�

management,�street�activities�and�markets.�

�

Today�I�am�just�going�to�focus�very�quickly�on�the�markets�element.��What�was�our�motivation?��We�believed�

that�these�services�were�critical�to�the�success�of�the�town�centre�and�we�believed�they�were�being�delivered�to�

an�incredibly�poor�standard�and�were�having�a�negative�impact�on�the�town�centre�as�a�whole.��It�was�a�real�

barrier�to�our�vision�and�we�felt�it�was�a�real�barrier�to�the�borough’s�vision�also.��We�felt�we�could�do�a�much�

better�job�in�the�driving�seat�and�that�is�where�the�journey�began.�

�

We�have�agreed�certain�conditions.��We�did�not�just�say,�“We�will�do�that�for�you”.��We�agreed�that�

Kingstonfirst�would�not�lose�out�financially�and�so�it�comes�with�funding�each�and�every�year;�that�it�could�not�

impact�on�our�core�purpose�as�a�BID;�and�that�it�could�not�jeopardise�the�BID.��Once�that�was�agreed,�these�

services�were�transferred.�

�

We�had�quite�a�few�challenging�years�because�we�were�the�first�BID�to�have�services�transferred�across�and�so�

we�were�learning�as�we�went�along�on�both�sides,�but�we�got�there�in�the�end.��During�the�whole�process,�the�

local�authority�and�Kingstonfirst�came�together�and�we�sought�funding�from�the�Greater�London�Authority�

(GLA)�under�the�Outer�London�Fund�(OLF)�and�we�did�that�jointly.��That�allowed�significant�investment�in�this�

marketplace�and�in�this�market.��The�aim�was�to�reinvigorate�the�town�centre.�

�

The�result�was�absolutely�worth�it.��It�was�blood,�sweat�and�tears�in�between�but�the�result�was�worth�it.��We�

are�now�an�award-winning�market.��There�has�been�a�complete�transformation.��We�have�taken�something�that�

was�an�ancient,�13th-century�market�and�have�merged�it�with�the�modern�world.��We�took�something�that�was�

failing�the�town�centre�and�turned�it�into�one�of�the�core�assets�of�the�town.��We�have�created�a�vibrant�market�

right�at�the�heart�of�the�town�centre,�which�creates�quite�a�large�part�of�Kingston’s�personality.��We�have�

created�a�new�shopping�destination�that�complements�what�is�already�there.��Also,�we�have�enhanced�the�

assets�for�property�investors�and�owners�across�the�town�centre�as�well,�which�is�the�key�to�creating�

employment,�entrepreneurship�and�opportunity.�

�

The�market�itself�has�a�turnover�of�£3�million.��That�is�with�35�stalls.��We�are�all�in�the�wrong�business;�we�need�

to�set�up�a�market�somewhere!��However,�75%�of�the�people�who�come�to�that�market�shop�in�the�town�

centre.��They�have�come�specifically�for�it�but�they�shop�elsewhere.��We�estimate�that�about�£250,000�is�the�

economic�impact�on�the�wider�community.��Something�very�small�was�having�such�a�negative�impact�and�we�

were�able�to�turn�that�right�around.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Can�I�ask�you�just�a�couple�of�points�on�the�markets?��The�funding�you�

talked�about�initially�came�from�the�Council.��Is�that�correct?�

�

Page 11



�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Yes.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��The�OLF�is�a�much�more�recent�innovation.��How�were�you�actually�working�

on�the�markets�before�the�OLF�came�in�and�provided�grant�funding�for�you?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

We�were�able�to�change�the�fabric.��It�was�the�

standard,�the�quality,�the�policies,�the�procedures�and�the�product�that�was�there.��We�were�able�to�create�a�

brand�for�the�market�itself.��However,�it�was�a�little�bit�like�making�a�silk�purse�out�of�a�sow’s�ear�because�the�

physical�appearance�of�the�market�was�very�poor.��It�had�been�set�up�10�or�20�years�ago�on�a�temporary�basis�

and�seemed�to�end�up�in�the�21st�century�looking�pretty�shabby.��What�I�would�say�is�that�the�public�finance�

acted�as�a�catalyst�to�really�advance�that�market�in�Kingston,�but�it�was�Kingstonfirst�that�drove�that.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��You�mentioned�that�there�were�meetings�at�the�beginning�when�the�Council�

sat�down�and�you�drew�up�your�operating�procedures,�one�of�which�was�that�you�would�not�lose�out�financially�

and�so�it�gave�you�the�money.��Did�it�give�you�complete�autonomy�to�do�what�you�needed�to�do�to�

reinvigorate�the�market?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Within�reason.��We�are�not�considered�as�a�contractor�

for�the�Council.��It�is�much�more�of�a�partnership�between�the�local�authority�and�us.��We�agreed�what�the�

strategy�was.��We�formulated�our�views�and�our�opinions,�then�we�presented�it�to�the�Council.��It�was�agreed�

and�we�were�able�to�move�ahead�for�five�years.��We�present�an�annual�report�and,�as�and�when�things�came�up�

that�we�believe�the�Council�should�be�involved�in,�we�involve�them�in�that�as�well1.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Over�time,�how�has�the�support�or�otherwise�for�the�BID�been�amongst�the�

businesses�in�the�BID?��Has�it�gone�up,�gone�down�or�plateaued?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

We�have�just�had�our�renewal�ballot�-�it�feels�like�quite�

a�long�time�ago�now�-�in�June�last�year.��That�was�our�second�renewal�ballot,�our�third�ballot�overall.��We�had�

the�greatest�turnout�we�have�had�so�far�and�81%�of�those�who�turned�out�voted�in�favour�of�the�BID.��In�our�

experience,�our�businesses�are�incredibly�challenging�and�incredibly�demanding�and,�each�BID�term,�they�want�

to�see�what�more�you�can�bring�to�the�area.��That�is�correct�and�proper.��They�should�be�challenging�us.��The�

turnout�that�we�had�we�were�incredibly�happy�with.��The�turnout�increased�year-on-year�and�the�number�of�

businesses�increased�as�well2.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you.��That�was�a�very�helpful�introduction.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��On�the�phase�of�development�as�you�move�from�public�realm�and�the�interest�of�the�town�

centre�and�move�into�the�services�that�you�provide�to�your�members�-�the�club,�if�I�can�refer�to�it�as�that�-�it�is�

almost�moving�into�a�chamber�of�commerce�type�of�role.��Was�there�an�active�chamber�of�commerce�in�

Kingston�at�the�time�and�was�there�any�conflict?��Also,�is�there�any�move�to�widen�those�services�that�you�

provide�to�other�businesses�in�Kingston?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

That�is�a�couple�of�questions�in�one.��First�and�

foremost,�yes,�there�was�a�chamber�and,�yes,�there�still�is�a�chamber.��I�sit�on�the�chamber�board�and�the�

                                                 
1�Following�the�meeting�Ros�Morgan�(Chief�Executive,�Kingstonfirst�BID)�clarified�this:�“We�formulated�our�views�and�our�opinions,�
drew�up�a�strategy�and�then�we�presented�it�to�the�Council.��It�was�agreed�and�we�were�able�to�move�ahead�for�five�years.��Now�we�
meet�regularly�to�provide�an�update,�present�an�annual�verbal�report�and,�as�and�when�things�came�up�that�we�believe�the�Council�
should�be�involved�in,�we�involve�[them]�in�that�as�well.”�
 
2�Following�the�meeting�Ros�Morgan�clarified�that:�“The�turnout�increased�year-on-year�in�each�ballot�and�the�number�of�businesses�
voting�in�favour�increased�as�well.�

Page 12



�

chamber�chief�executive�sits�on�my�board�and�we�meet�alongside�other�key�business�support�organisations�to�

collaborate�and�see�what�we�can�deliver�together.��We�do�a�number�of�projects�jointly.��However,�the�focus�is�

very�different�for�the�chamber�and�us:�they�are�very�much�networking�and�helping�businesses�do�business�with�

one�another;�ours�is�very�much�focused�on�improving�the�trading�environment�on�behalf�of�our�businesses�

within�the�town�centre.�

�

To�answer�your�second�question,�absolutely,�if�there�are�businesses�outside�the�BID�area�that�want�to�be�

involved,�there�is�an�opportunity�for�voluntary�contributions�and�we�have�done�that�with�the�hotels.��When�we�

are�promoting�Kingston�as�a�destination,�we�want�to�draw�visitors�to�Kingston�first�and�foremost.��Therefore,�

we�market�the�borough,�including�Chessington�and�Hampton�Court,�as�it�is�mostly�about�trying�to�get�people�

to�Kingston�and�to�then�bring�them�into�the�town�centre.��There�are�conversations�currently�with�some�of�the�

businesses�in�various�districts�so�that�they�can�benefit�from�the�opportunity�of�the�network�that�we�have�

established.��For�example,�in�Surbiton,�we�have�a�gentleman�who�runs�a�stationery�business.��We�are�now�

talking�to�him�about�whether�he�could�provide�stationery�for�a�group�of�businesses�within�the�town.��It�is�

keeping�the�economy�in�Kingston.��There�are�lots�of�opportunities,�yes.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Debbie,�from�a�City�Hall�perspective,�what�value�do�the�BIDs�bring�to�

London’s�high�streets?�

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��It�is�quite�tough�to�follow�on�from�Ros,�I�am�

learning.��Before�I�come�on�to�my�more�scripted�answer,�just�one�of�my�observations�on�what�was�said�and�I�am�

sure�we�will�talk�about�it�some�more�today.��What�is�really�interesting�is�the�different�value�that�BIDs�provide�at�

different�stages�in�their�life�cycles.��Almost�the�pre-BID�stage�has�its�own�value,�and�then�BID�1,�BID�2�and�

BID�3,�as�I�have�helpfully�heard�it�called.��They�move�through�different�stages�in�their�life�cycles�and�they�are�

different�things�to�that�business�community�at�different�stages.��I�am�sure�we�will�talk�some�more�about�that.�

�

Clearly,�we�are�very�supportive�of�BIDs�in�City�Hall�and�they�play�an�important�part�in�the�place-shaping,�

regeneration�and�co-ordination�of�high�streets.��We�have�relationships�with�all�of�the�BIDs�in�London�through�

our�BIDs�programme�and,�indeed,�through�our�funded�regeneration�programmes�that�we�have�talked�about�

here�before�as�well.�

�

They�provide�a�very�helpful�focal�point�for�the�public�sector�to�engage�with�a�community�of�businesses�in�a�

locality�and�enable�the�public�sector�to�communicate�with�businesses�of�all�sizes�as�well,�rather�than�needing�to�

work�through�perhaps�a�smaller�number�of�businesses.�

�

Linked�into�the�life-cycle�point,�we�are�seeing�that�as�BIDs�move�into�maturity�-�if�I�can�say�that�-�they�are�

developing�a�lot�of�innovative�thinking.��As�we�heard�Ros�describing,�in�the�initial�stages�a�lot�of�BIDs�are�

concerned�with�tidying�up�and�keeping�safe�kinds�of�activities,�but�then�we�are�seeing�a�lot�of�BIDs�moving�

into�more�innovative�territory.�

�

We�have�heard�about�the�taking-on�of�the�markets�management,�which�is�really�positive�because,�quite�often,�

one�of�the�challenges�for�markets�is�that�they�are�managed�from�an�enforcement�perspective�in�local�

authorities.��The�ability�of�a�BID�to�approach�a�market�for�its�economic�potential�and�its�regenerative�potential�

is�a�really�positive�thing.��Because�that�is�the�raison�d’être�of�a�BID,�it�has�the�ability�to�see�the�market�from�

that�perspective.��That�is�just�one�example�of�a�number�of�innovative�practices�happening�in�London�in�other�

BIDs�as�well.�

�

Another�point�is�that�they�help�to�attract�inward�investment.��A�number�of�London�BIDs�have�international�

profiles.��For�example,�South�Bank,�the�New�West�End�Company�and�Inmidtown,�the�central�London�BIDs,�all�

Page 13



�

have�international�profiles�and�provide�a�focal�point�for�international�stakeholders�and�partners�to�get�into�a�

place.�

�

At�the�risk�of�stating�the�obvious,�they�provide�a�sustainable�revenue�stream�for�ongoing�capital�projects�and�

services.��Just�before�I�came�here,�I�had�been�in�a�session�being�scrutinised�about�Tottenham.��One�of�the�

things�we�were�talking�about�there�was�that�there�is�not�a�BID�in�Tottenham�at�the�moment�but,�in�terms�of�

ongoing�investment�on�the�back�of�the�investment�we�already�have�there,�perhaps�we�can�foresee�in�the�

coming�years�that�it�might�be�an�appropriate�next�step�for�Tottenham,�which�does�create�that�ongoing�

investment�targeted�at�the�town�centre�so�that�it�is�not�as�reliant�on�the�punctuation�points�of�the�funded�

programmes.��In�London,�obviously,�some�of�the�locations�have�some�really�quite�significant�revenue-

generating�potential�and�so�we�are�not�talking�about�small�amounts�of�money.��Particularly�some�of�the�larger�

ones�can�attract�some�quite�significant�funding�into�their�areas.�

�

I�will�leave�it�there.��I�am�happy�to�come�back�on�any�of�those.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Anna,�you�have�been�quite�critical�of�BIDs,�as�you�said�yourself�in�your�

opening�remarks.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�have,�yes.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Do�you�want�to�offer�a�contrary�view?�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�can�give�

what�I�would�describe�as�a�‘competing�narrative’.��I�also�began�my�investigation,�like�you,�in�Kingston�as�

Kingston�was�the�first�BID.��When�I�was�doing�my�research�in�2007/8,�it�was�the�first�BID�and�so�I�went�to�

Kingston.��I�was�quite�open�about�my�research�and�I�was�shown�around�by�your�predecessor�or�perhaps�a�

couple�of�predecessors�before�you.��What�we�have�heard�from�Ros�[Morgan]�is�a�from-the-ground-up�

perspective.��I�would�provide�quite�a�different�context.�

�

The�context�I�describe�in�the�chapter�relating�to�BIDs�and�ground�control,�which�has�the�heading�“Clean�and�

Safe”,�is�that�in�2003�the�Office�of�the�Deputy�Prime�Minister�was�very�interested�in�town�centre�management�

policies�and�was�very�interested�in�the�particular�approach�taken�in�the�United�States�(US)�and�in�particular�by�

New�York�and�the�New�York�Mayor’s�Office.��They�visited�the�New�York�Mayor’s�Office.��They�visited�New�

York.��They�saw�what�had�been�done�under�a�whole�raft�of�policies�to�clean�up�New�York.��There�was�a�whole�

raft�of�rhetoric�around�the�need�to�‘reclaim�the�public�realm’�of�New�York.��Jack�Straw�[former�Home�

Secretary]�at�the�time�was�talking�about�the�need�to�get�‘squeegee�merchants’�and�vandals�off�the�streets�and�

there�was�a�big�wave�of�support�for�what�was�called�the�‘broken�windows’�policy:�clear�up�the�small�things�and�

the�big�things�will�take�care�of�themselves.��That�drove�this�interest�in�New�York.�

�

Our�officials�went�over�to�New�York�and�saw�that�many�BIDs�by�this�time�had�been�set�up�in�New�York.��

Perhaps�100�by�2003�-�I�do�not�have�the�exact�figures;�it�is�all�in�my�book�-�had�been�set�up�in�New�York�and�

they�thought,�“This�is�a�policy�that�we�should�emulate”.��They�literally�brought�the�policy�over�here�lock,�stock�

and�barrel.��Possibly�there�will�be�another�competing�narrative�to�challenge�my�own,�but�our�British�BIDs�

adopted�the�New�York�Mayor’s�guidelines�about�what�is�essentially�a�marketing�strategy�for�places,�

place-making�that�is�centred�around�the�creation�of�BID�companies,�which�are�organisations�funded�by�

businesses�in�an�area�to�manage�place.��It�is�a�management�strategy�towards�place.�

�

This�has�actually�proved�quite�controversial�in�the�US�and�many�American�downtown�districts�had�organised�

and�had�not�wished�to�see�it.��It�continues�to�be�controversial.��It�is�now�controversial�in�parts�of�Britain�despite�

all�the�advantages�you�may�bring�to�downtown�areas�-�I�am�using�the�American�terminology�because�we�seem�

Page 14



�

to�have�just�imported�it�-�and�I�am�not�saying�that�you�do�not.��In�fact,�BIDs�have�invited�me�and�they�are�

saying,�“Why�are�you�pointing�your�guns�at�us?��We�are�trying�to�do�good�things�here”.�

�

A�lot�of�people�do�not�see�this�as�a�democratic�approach,�basically,�because�your�ballots�do�not�involve�

residents.��I�query�that.��I�cannot�see�why�the�ballots�do�not�involve�residents.��This�is�an�organisation�for�

businesses�that�recreates�place�in�the�image�of�business.��That�is�a�very�different�way�of�looking�at�the�city.�I�

was�just�going�to�read�you�out�what�the�Kingston�BID�manager�said�to�me�when�he�showed�me�around.��Out�of�

respect�for�him�and�his�helpfulness,�I�did�not�name�him�in�the�book.��A�lot�of�the�book�relies�on�off-the-record�

research.��I�talked�to�a�lot�of�people�and�I�wanted�them�to�be�open�and�so�I�did�not�name�them,�but�I�am�telling�

you�that�this�was�in�fact�your�[Ros�Morgan]�predecessor.�

�

We�were�having�a�discussion�as�he�showed�me�around�Kingston�about�democracy�and�the�democratic�rights�of�

residents�in�local�authority�areas.��This�is�what�I�have�written:�

�

“One�manager�[it�was�the�manager�of�the�Kingston�BID]�declared�that�it�was�precisely�the�undemocratic�

nature�of�the�approach�which�is�the�unique�selling�point,�because�it�means�‘you�can�get�things�done’�

without�getting�bogged�down�in�the�competing�needs�of�different�groups.��As�we�walked�around�his�

area,�he�occasionally�stopped�to�scrape�a�piece�of�chewing�gum�off�the�pavement,�before�exclaiming:�

‘Bugger�democracy.��Customer�focus�is�not�democratic.��You�ask�the�customer�what�they�want�and�you�

deliver�it.��The�citizen�is�a�customer�and�the�aim�is�to�respond�best�to�the�needs�of�the�customer.��The�

second�it�becomes�involved�with�politics,�it�becomes�diluted�down�and�the�pure�vision�of�the�customer�is�

lost’.”�

�

This�was�off�the�record,�but�I�just�felt�that�eight�years�later�in�the�context�of�this�discussion�and�sitting�next�to�

the�Kingston�BID�it�was�fair�to�bring�it�up.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��OK.��We�have�put�it�on�the�record.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��It�was�quite�interesting.��In�the�answers�you�just�gave,�the�implication�was�that�the�

only�legitimate�stakeholders�in�a�local�area�are�the�residential�population.��Do�you�not�feel�that�the�business�

population�has�an�equally�legitimate�right�--�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��Absolutely.��

You�misunderstand�me.��I�did�not�say�that�they�are�the�only.��My�big�concern�is�that�with�BIDs�it�is�the�

businesses�that�are�the�only�stakeholders.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��You�could�argue�that�in�local�government�the�voting�residents�are�the�only�--�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��You�could�

argue�that,�but�voter�turnout�and�a�series�of�democratic�failures�in�local�government�means�that�local�

government,�unfortunately,�does�not�represent�our�citizens�in�the�way�that�it�perhaps�might�do.��We�need�

some�sort�of�--�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Could�you�just�expand�upon�that?��I�do�not�understand�what�you�mean�by�that.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��We�all�

know�that�turnouts�in�local�authority�elections�are�lamentably�low.��There�are�also�many�examples�that�I�cover�

in�my�work�where�some�of�the�more�contentious�aspects�of�what�might�be�called�‘regeneration�policy’�see�a�lot�

of�local�residents’�groups�come�very�frequently�into�serious�conflict�with�local�authorities,�particularly�in�

Page 15



�

London�at�the�moment�over�housing�policy,�for�example,�but�in�a�whole�sequence�of�areas�where�they�do�not�

feel�represented�by�their�local�authorities.�

�

Whatever�your�view�on�the�matter,�the�fact�of�voter�turnout�being�so�low�is�a�very�strong�indication�that�

unfortunately�having�one�local�authority�member�on�a�BID�board�does�not�represent�the�population�of�a�place.��

You�may�have�one�or�two�members�from�the�local�authority�on�the�BID�board�and�you�may�say,�“That�is�where�

you�get�your�democratic�accountability”.��That�may�work�on�paper�and�in�the�relevant�management�flow�

diagram,�but�it�does�not�give�people�a�voice.��No,�it�is�not�only�the�residents�who�should�have�a�voice.��It�is�a�

consortium�of�residents,�citizens�of�the�wider�area�and�businesses�in�the�area,�which�includes�smaller�businesses�

as�well�as�larger�businesses.�

�

Other�critiques�of�BIDs�would�say�that�it�is�a�certain�kind�of�business�that�benefits�very�much�from�BIDs.��There�

are�certain�types�of�business�that�actually�do�not�want�BIDs.��There�are�parts�of�London�such�as�Fitzrovia�where�

there�was�a�huge�campaign�against�the�establishment�of�a�BID�there�because�a�certain�kind�of�smaller�business�

thought�they�were�going�to�get�steamrolled�out�of�existence,�the�sort�of�business�that�Fitzrovia�and�Soho�have�

been�famous�for�over�generations.�

�

No,�I�am�not�at�all�saying�that�I�do�not�think�businesses�should�be�a�key�part,�but�it�is�a�certain�type�of�

management�approach�to�the�city�that�promotes�a�certain�kind�of�business�and,�I�would�say,�a�certain�

blandness�and�homogenisation,�which�means�that�all�our�high�streets�and�town�centres�actually�look�the�same.��

I�cover�this�in�the�book�as�well.��BID�managers,�in�my�experience,�find�this�a�real�conundrum.��One�of�their�aims�

is�to�create�a�unique,�exciting,�interesting�destination�and�yet�the�places�they�create�are�all�the�same�wherever�

they�might�be�because�they�all�have�the�same�strategy.��They�said�things�to�me�like,�“We�try�to�make�it�exciting�

and�so�we�import�excitement”.��That�is�the�ultimate�outcome�of�this�management�approach:�you�clear�out�the�

excitement,�you�clear�out�the�diversity�already�existing,�for�example,�in�an�area�like�Fitzrovia,�you�create�a�

bland,�duty-free�departure-lounge�environment�and�then�you�have�to�make�it�exciting�and�so�you�import�some�

street�theatre.��That�is�not�the�way�to�create�an�exciting,�diverse,�democratic�place,�but�doubtless�it�brings�in�

big�revenues�for�a�certain�kind�of�business.��My�critique�would�be�that�it�is�a�certain�kind�of�business�in�

particular�that�benefits�from�this�management�approach�to�the�city.�

�

It�is�about�looking�at�cities�as�something�to�apply�business�school�principles�to�and�management�textbooks�to�

and�that�has�something�that�has�been�the�case�in�the�UK�since�we�went�over�to�the�US�in�2003�and,�I�would�

say,�uncritically�adopted�the�policy.��I�am�by�no�means�the�only�critic�but�I�am�simply�--�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Hang�on.��The�‘blandification’�of�the�high�street�predates�2004.��Making�them�

bland�predates�2004�by�quite�some�decades�and�so�how�--�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�would�

trace�it�back�myself�very�much�to�the�rise�of�the�out-of-town�superstore�in�the�mid-1980s,�which�sucked�a�lot�

of�the�lifeblood�out�of�high�streets.��The�way�I�understand�this�is�that�it�was�about�saying,�“Out-of-town�

superstores�took�business�away�from�the�high�street;�we�are�going�to�bring�business�back�to�the�high�street”.��I�

would�say�that�this�‘business-first’�approach�has�created�a�certain�kind�of�city�space,�which�means�that�we�have�

lost�a�lot�in�the�process.�

�

I�would�just�like�to�say�that�I�am�not�by�any�means�the�only�or�even�like�a�leading�critic.��I�just�happen�to�be�

someone�who�is�also�a�journalist.��Perhaps�as�my�job�I�take�on�complex�concepts�and�try�to�explain�them,�but�

there�are�many�academics�who�write�very�critical�work�on�this�and�upon�whose�work�I�draw.��These�are�not�

actually�my�own�ideas.��There�are�two�academics�in�particular.��Professor�Kevin�Ward�at�Manchester�University�

works�with�someone�called�[Dr]�Ian�Cook�[Senior�Lecturer�in�Social�Sciences,�Northumbria�University]�and�they�

have�for�many�years�been�working�on�some�very�prestigious�academic�research�founded�by�the�Leverhulme�

Page 16



�

Foundation,�which�has�an�incredibly�good�reputation�internationally.��The�sorts�of�things�I�say�they�have�said�

long�ago�but�they�say�them�in�forums�which�are�unfortunately�not�widely�heard,�which�is�another�tangential�

problem.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Thank�you.�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Just�to�pick�up�on�a�few�points,�I�am�here�to�talk�about�

the�Kingston�BID�and�so�that�is�what�I�am�going�to�do.��Just�to�pick�up�on�a�few�of�the�points,�I�recognised�the�

person�you�were�describing�when�you�said�he�scraped�chewing�gum�off�the�ground.��He�probably�still�does�it�

because�he�is�a�resident�in�Kingston.��Parts�of�what�he�says�I�would�agree�with;�parts�of�what�he�said�I�might�

not�agree�with.�

�

What�I�would�say�is�that�BIDs�have�evolved�and�advanced�since�this�piece�of�research�took�place�and�so�I�am�

glad�that�I�am�here�today�because�it�demonstrates�how�far�we�have�actually�come.��You�will�have�some�people�

who�do�not�support�it�and�a�lot�of�people�who�do.��That�is�democracy.��In�fact,�if�at�every�single�turnout�we�

had�100%�of�people�voting�‘yes’,�we�would�start�to�query�that.��It�is�correct�and�proper�that�this�is�challenged�

and�that�BIDs�are�able�to�stand�up�on�their�own�two�feet�and�demonstrate�value.�

�

However,�ultimately,�it�comes�down�to�the�voters.��If�businesses�do�not�want�a�BID,�they�will�not�vote�in�favour�

of�it.��It�really�does�come�down�to�that�bottom�line.��We�have�to�evidence�that�we�have�consulted�with�every�

single�potential�voter�and�we�have�to�record�all�of�that.��It�is�part�of�our�legal�obligations.�

�

In�terms�of�Kingston,�we�have�1,000�members�and�200-plus�of�those�are�independent.��They�make�up�the�

reason�that�Kingston�is�not�bland�and�is�an�independent3.��On�Thursday,�we�will�sponsor�the�Independent�

category�in�the�Kingston�Business�Awards.��Therefore,�I�do�not�recognise�a�lot�of�what�Anna�[Minton]�is�

describing�because�it�might�be�back�in�time�now,�whereas�there�are�plenty�of�BIDs�that�embrace�all�businesses�

and,�actually,�all�of�their�communities.��I�run�a�monthly�stakeholder�forum�that�is�made�up�of�councillors,�

residents,�residents’�groups,�private�properties�and�businesses�and�they�will�come�together�and�we�debate�and�

discuss�various�topics�affecting�the�area.��

�

Therefore,�it�is�just�worth�saying�that�we�have�progressed�significantly�since�then4�and�BIDs�come�in�all�shapes�

and�forms.��It�is�important�to�recognise�that�as�well.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��We�will�hear�a�bit�more�about�that�later�on.��Anna,�you�wanted�to�come�back�

on�that?�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�just�very�

quickly�want�to�come�back�on�two�points.��First,�the�back-in-time�point,�obviously,�I�am�going�to�challenge.��I�

would�like�to�point�out�that�Kevin�Ward�[University�of�Manchester]�and�Ian�Cook’s�[Northumbria�University]�

most�recent�piece�of�research�was�published�last�year.��I�am�getting�more�emails�now�from�local�community�

areas�concerned�about�the�setting-up�of�BIDs�in�their�areas�than�I�have�ever�had�before.��I�brought�up�Kingston�

because�you�[Ros�Morgan]�were�here.��It�was�the�basis�of�my�research.��Of�course�that�was�a�long�time�ago,�but�

the�concerns�are,�if�anything,�considerably�greater�today�than�they�were�then.�

�

My�final�point�is�on�ballots.��We�are�talking�a�lot�about�ballots.��If�we�are�going�to�talk�about�the�democratic�

process�in�cities,�we�perhaps�really�need�to�go�back�to�the�drawing�board�ourselves:�forget�about�the�

                                                 
3�Following�the�meeting,�Ros�Morgan�clarified�this:�“In�terms�of�Kingston,�we�have�1,000�members�and�200-plus�of�those�are�
independent�businesses.��They�make�up�the�reason�that�Kingston�is�not�bland�and�is�an�ambassador�for�independent�business”.���
Ros�Morgan�added�after�the�meeting�that�she�is�an�Ambassador�of�Small�Business�Saturday.���
4�Ros�Morgan�was�referring�to�Anna�Minton’s�research.�

Page 17



�

North�American�BID�model,�forget�about�the�international�BID�model�and�ask�ourselves,�“Should�we�not�be�

trying�to�create�a�more�democratic�model�in�our�own�local�areas?”��Why�on�earth�do�ballots�not�include�local�

residents?��It�just�seems�a�very�basic�point.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��The�basic�point�is�that�the�ballot�is�the�trigger�point�for�the�businesses�to�pay�extra.��Local�

residents�are�not�being�asked�to�pay�extra.��Therefore,�I�am�taken�by�your�arguments�in�terms�of�the�lack�of�

democratic�involvement,�but�it�also�seems�to�be�about�whether�this�consultation�is�real�or�not.��There�are�some�

tension�points�as�we�try�to�get�more�residential�into�our�town�centres�with�some�of�that�payoff�around�that.��

You�make�some�very�powerful�arguments�but,�on�the�ballot�issue,�it�is�more�than�just�a�ballot;�it�is�also�about�

involvement�and�where,�ultimately,�some�decisions�lie�over�residents,�which�do�not�lie�with�the�BID�but�lie�with�

the�council.��We�are�going�to�go�on�to�explore�that�relationship�and�where�decisions�really�are�taken�and�in�

what�context,�but�you�are�making�some�powerful�points.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�would�just�

question�that.��I�see�you�are�saying�that�businesses�pay�and�that�is�why�they�are�being�balloted.��It�is�not�just�

ability�to�pay�that�determines�ones�experience�of�the�city.��My�own�view�would�be�that�there�should�be�three�

‘stakeholders’,�to�use�one�of�my�non-favourite�words:�there�should�be�the�residents�of�the�area,�the�businesses�

within�the�area�and�the�wider�citizens�who�access�that�particular�part�of�the�city.��I�am�sure�that�would�be�an�

almost�impossible�technical�challenge,�but�those�are�the�minimum�groupings�that�you�have�to�consider�

democratically.��




Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Ros,�from�your�experience,�would�you�say�that�generally�there�is�support�

for�the�BIDs�that�are�being�put�forward�from�small�businesses�and�residents?��I�am�talking�about�accountability,�

etc.��Also,�how�do�you�consult�those�wider�communities�and�stakeholders�and�who�does�it?�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

In�Kingston,�we�consult�with�every�single�business�and�

that�is�in�whatever�shape�or�form�it�takes,�whether�it�is�face-to-face,�verbally,�surveys,�telephone�

conversations,�group�meetings,�one-to-ones�and�a�whole�variety�of�forums.��Ultimately,�what�we�are�trying�to�

achieve�is�an�overview�of�the�businesses’�priorities�and�needs�and�being�able�to�consolidate�that�into�a�business�

plan�for�a�five-year�period.�

�

In�terms�of�the�residents,�I�will�give�you�the�example�of�Kingston�again.��When�we�started�the�most�recent�

renewal�ballot,�we�had�a�stakeholder�forum�and�we�invited�all�members�of�the�community�to�come�and�that�

was�where�the�conversation�started�on�how�we�want�to�improve�Kingston.��We�had�a�whole�mixture�of�

businesses,�residents,�councillors,�police,�any�other�statutory�body,�etc,�and�we�brought�them�all�together.��

That�is�where�our�initial�conversation�started�and�that�really�started�to�shape�our�consultation,�which�we�then�

honed�down�to�the�businesses�that�would�ultimately�contribute�and�vote.�




Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��My�main�question�is�directed�to�Julie.��To�what�extent�do�you�think�BIDs�are�moving�from�

high-street�enhancement�to�taking�a�more�strategic,�long-term�role�not�just�in�shaping�our�town�centres�but,�

interestingly,�in�providing�services�to�their�members�and�some�of�that�business�support�work?��I�would�be�quite�

interested�to�hear�of�your�experiences�around�the�country.�

�

Are�London�BIDs�acting�differently�than�elsewhere�in�the�UK?��I�recognise�that�all�BIDs�are�slightly�different�in�

terms�of�their�development�and�focus,�but�is�there�a�trend�that�you�can�identify?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��If�I�may,�I�shall�just�step�back�a�moment�and�try�to�just�

cover�off�some�of�the�things�that�have�been�said�already.�

Page 18



�

�

Anna�[Minton]�will�be�surprised�to�hear�that�I�am�starting�by�agreeing�with�her.��It�is�that�basic�principle�of�a�

place�having�a�whole�series�of�different�stakeholders�at�different�levels�and�layers�of�interest.��It�is�absolutely�

right�that�any�place�has�all�of�those�stakeholders�at�the�table.��However,�what�we�are�getting�confused�with�a�

little�bit�is�when�they�are�at�the�table�and�for�what�purpose.�

�

In�terms�of�the�establishment�and�evolution�of�BIDs,�we�see�that�the�model�evolved.��Anna�[Minton]�may�be�

disappointed�to�hear�that�I�was�part�of�that�delegation�to�the�US�and�bringing�it�back�and�I�was�one�of�those�

writing�the�legislation.��I�do�not�think�we�wrote�a�US�model�into�the�legislation.��It�is�very�different�what�we�do�

here�to�the�US.��However,�on�the�basic�principle�of�having�the�ability�to�manage�places,�yes,�we�have�the�same�

principles.�

�

The�motivation�for�BIDs�coming�here�and�the�reason�why�we�do�this�is�that�we�have�done�partnership�through�

a�variety�of�different�ways�with�various�different�levels�of�success�from�the�mid-1980s.��We�had�four�town�

centre�management�pilots�that�started�in�1986�around�the�country,�three�in�England�and�one�in�Scotland,�and�

they�proved�this�basic�principle�that�businesses,�residents�and�communities�wanted�to�work�together�and�were�

willing�to�jointly�invest�together.��However,�they�spent�15�years�doing�that�and�I�was�one�of�those�professionals�

doing�that�and�getting�constantly�frustrated,�as�Ros�[Morgan]�described,�with�wanting�to�do�so�much�and�

having�so�much�capacity�but�just�not�having�the�money�to�do�it.�

�

What�BIDs�do,�actually,�more�than�anything�else�and�the�single�purpose�of�BIDs�in�the�legislation�is�to�allow�

you�to�create�a�sustainable�income�stream.��We�can�do�everything�else�without�the�BID�legislation.��That�is�the�

only�thing�that�is�different.��Once�we�start�layering�on�the�various�different�quality�checks�of�BIDs�we�start�

improving�the�model,�but�it�is�actually�just�about�securing�income.�

�

Therefore,�when�we�are�establishing�a�BID,�as�Ros�[Morgan]�has�described,�building�from�an�existing�

partnership,�having�a�wider�consultation�and�engagement�-�and�we�will�come�to�this�in�relation�to�the�local�

authority�role�later�-�and�coming�through�a�position�of�being�able�to�create�what�we�believe�is�a�business�plan�

for�the�place�that�the�businesses,�which�are�going�to�be�asked�to�fund�that�income�stream,�are�willing�to�invest�

in.��It�has�to�be�seen�as�business-led�and�business-governed�and�with�a�business�case�for�them�so�that�they�

genuinely�believe�they�are�willing�to�invest�in�this�place.��Otherwise,�they�are�just�not�going�to�do�it.��However�

much�we�would�like�people�to�be�philanthropic,�they�are�not.��They�are�running�businesses.��We�have�to�create�

a�business�plan�that�demonstrates�that�case�for�investment.��Then�we�put�those�businesses�and�only�those�that�

are�going�to�be�paying�through�that�ballot�process�so�that�they�are�balloted�to�ensure�that�the�mandatory�levy�

can�be�charged.�

�

Then,�once�we�have�established�the�BID,�we�create�the�governance�arrangements�that�have�usually�been�set�up�

and�should�have�been�set�out�in�the�business�plan.��We�then�start�saying�at�the�start�the�journey,�“Now�who�is�

going�to�manage�this�fund�and�this�activity?”��In�the�vast�majority�of�BIDs�around�the�UK,�not�all�of�them�but�

the�vast�majority,�all�of�those�stakeholders�are�at�that�board�table,�those�who�pay�and�those�who�do�not�pay.��

Residents�are�involved�in�lots�of�BID�board,�not�all�of�them�but�lots�of�them,�and�lots�of�different�layers�and�

interests�of�businesses.��It�is�not�just�about�retail;�it�is�about�all�sorts�of�stuff�and�different�types�of�businesses.��

It�is�about�large�and�small.�

�

If�we�just�step�back,�in�terms�of�the�numbers�there�are�215�BIDs�that�exist�around�the�UK�today�and�that�is�

over�ten-and-a-half�years.��There�are�46�in�London.��It�is�important�to�recognise�that�the�BID�is�one�single�

concept�but�it�has�huge�amounts�of�flexibility�within�the�concept.��Therefore,�BIDs�exist�in�many�different�

types�of�places�and�they�are�quite�different�in�those�different�types�of�places.��If�I�take�the�28�industrial�BIDs�

around�the�country�out�into�a�different�sector,�they�are�very�different.��They�do�a�great�job�but�it�is�very�

different�to�what�the�pure�town�centre�ones�are�doing.��We�have�town�centre�ones�of�a�large�scale�and�of�a�

Page 19



�

small�scale.��In�London,�we�have�the�central�London�commercial�ones�that�are�quite�different�on�a�large�scale�

to�the�typical�high�street�model.��We�have�ones�that�are�focused�predominantly�on�leisure�and�that�ends�up�

being�quite�different�and�being�driven�by�a�retail�base,�and�we�have�those�that�capture�the�entire�place.�

�

Leeds�has�a�BID�that�I�took�through�a�ballot�in�February�of�this�year�that�is�its�first�BID,�established�in�the�fifth-

largest�city�in�the�UK,�but�with�the�entire�city.��They�wanted�to�all�be�part�of�one�city�voice.��It�is�1,000�

businesses�of�all�sectors,�all�wanting�to�invest�together.��What�then�plays�out�in�terms�of�its�governance,�its�

business�plan�and�its�operating�procedures�is�what�that�place�needs�and�it�is�quite�different�in�different�places.�

�

I�am�not�sitting�here�telling�you�that�all�215�are�fantastic�because�they�are�not.��I�know�Ian�Cook�[Northumbria�

University]�well.��I�do�have�to�pick�you�up�on�that:�there�are�not�‘loads’�of�academics�talking�notably�about�

this.��There�are�very�disappointingly�few�academics�talking�about�BIDs�at�all�and�I�have�been�trying�to�conjure�

up�some�academic�interest�in�BIDs�because�we�need�the�academic�literature�but�it�is�not�there.��There�is�some�

but�there�is�not�enough.�

�

However,�there�are�concerns.��There�is�an�‘Abolish�BIDs’�Facebook�page�that�was�created�two-and-a-half�years�

ago�that�came�out�of�concerns�in�Plymouth.��There�is�an�‘Against�BIDs’�website�that�has�a�steady�stream�of�

concern.��There�have�been�some�e-petitions�come�out�as�a�result�of�ballots.��Canterbury�had�one�and�was�

found�in�favour�and�went�forward.��St�Ives�had�one.��There�are�places�that�are�hitting�problems.��We�should�all�

be�aware�of�those�and�we�should�all�recognise�those.��From�an�industry�perspective,�we�embrace�it�and�try�to�

ensure�that�the�model�works�well.�

�

If�I�just�go�to�the�principles:�the�BID�is�therefore�there�to�secure�an�income�stream�that�is�sustainable�to�make�a�

difference�in�that�place.��From�a�business�perspective,�you�have�to�design�a�BID�for�them�[businesses]�that�

ensures�you�can�either�increase�their�trading�performance�-�and�that�is�not�just�retail;�it�is�whatever�they�are�

doing�-�and/or�reduce�their�occupancy�costs.��That�is�what�makes�them�a�business�case.��There�are�lots�of�

other�things�they�love�you�doing,�but�how�am�I�going�to�ensure�that�a�law�firm�in�a�city�is�going�to�vote�for�a�

BID?��I�am�going�to�show�them�that�it�is�going�to�have�a�levy�of�£2,000�a�year�and�I�have�to�demonstrate�that�

it�is�going�to�get�£2,000�worth�of�value�back�in�some�way.��That�is�the�basic�principle.��They�like�it�because�it�is�

self-help�for�the�business�community.�

�

However,�when�it�comes�into�delivery,�then�it�does�all�sorts�of�other�things.��As�Ros�[Morgan]�said,�BIDs�have�

to�therefore�then�measure�their�impact�to�prove�their�value�to�then�continue.��One�of�the�best�things�we�

created�in�the�UK�model�-�and�I�stand�very�firmly�on�this�and�we�have�done�a�lot�of�work�in�London�and�New�

York�-�is�we�created�a�fixed-term�BID�that�gives�you�a�maximum�of�only�five�years�and�ensures�you�have�to�be�

transparent�and�accountable.��You�have�to�be�able�to�demonstrate�impact�because�you�can�never�have�a�life�of�

more�than�five�years.��In�the�US,�there�is�different�legislation�across�the�different�states�but�the�vast�majority�of�

them�have�what�they�call�no�‘sunset�clause’:�they�can�run�on�and�on.��New�York�is�slightly�different�and�they�

are�more�tightly�governed�by�the�New�York�City�Council�than�we�are�in�the�UK�and�we�might�go�on�to�that�

debate�later.��I�would�not�advocate�that�you�copy�the�New�York�model�for�London.��However,�the�basic�

principle�of�ensuring�we�have�that�accountability�and�transparency�is�really�important.�

�

Coming�then�to�a�question�of�place-shaping,�what�I�would�pick�up�is�something�Debbie�[Jackson]�said�earlier�

about�this�evolution.��There�is�undoubtedly�an�evolution�with�BIDs.��We�see�the�very�basic�principles�in�year�

one,�term�one�that�you�have�to�get�the�basic�janitorial�stuff�on�the�ground�right,�the�practical�stuff�that�

businesses�are�saying�on�the�doorsteps�every�day�of�the�week�is�a�problem�to�them,�their�waste,�their�litter,�

their�safety,�their�lighting,�all�the�basic�principles�of�operating�in�that�place.��It�is�different�to�the�extent�that�

industrials�are�always�focused�on�security�and�town�centres�are�largely�focused�on�clean�first,�but�then�they�

start�evolving�into�other�things.��They�start�evolving�into�promotion,�marketing,�branding�and�managing�the�

place�in�the�way�Anna�[Minton]�described�that�she�does�not�like,�but�businesses�want�to�ensure�from�their�

Page 20



�

stake�in�this�place�that�this�place�is�managed.��From�a�consumer�point�of�view,�we�all�drive�that�now.��

Consumers�follow�brands.��Whether�we�like�it�or�not,�that�is�what�consumers�are�doing.��Whilst�Bluewater�

[shopping�centre�in�Kent]�does�it�wonderfully�and�Westfield�does�it�wonderfully,�a�town�centre�has�to�do�it�and�

drive�that�agenda�from�a�consumer�point�of�view,�too.��What�we�then�see�is�that�gradual�evolution�once�we�

have�the�maturity�of�the�BID�and�we�have�demonstrated�some�basics�on�the�ground�and�it�is�the�businesses�

that�generally�are�driving�that�leadership�agenda.�

�

In�terms�of�defining�what�place-shaping�is,�I�would�step�back�and�say�it�is�perhaps�threefold.��There�is�the�

leadership�role�first.��When�you�have�some�of�the�basics�sorted,�you�have�a�broad�partnership�and�you�have�the�

stakeholders�at�the�table,�there�is�a�need�for�leadership�and�co-ordination.��That�generally�then�often�

kick-starts�the�need�and�desire�for�place-making.��I�would�say�that�place-making�is�before�place-shaping.��

Place-making�is�about�creating�that�activity�and�that�animation.��The�markets�I�would�describe�as�place-making�

in�Kingston;�events�and�festivals,�public�realm�investments.��It�is�about�making�a�place�desirable,�whatever�that�

might�be.��From�there,�it�evolves�into�a�much�greater�role�of�place-shaping,�which�is�much�more�about�

forward-thinking�about�what�this�place�is�longer�term.��BIDs�are�gradually�in�a�number�of�the�more�mature�

locations�in�that�space.�

�

I�will�give�you�a�few�examples�from�London.��She�happens�to�be�sitting�here�actually;�I�am�not�saying�who�

because�she�is�sitting�here.��Team�London�Bridge�had�a�very�good�example�of�place-shaping.��At�the�time�

leading�up�to�the�London�Bridge�Station�redevelopment,�it�was�the�BID�that�brought�its�businesses�together�

and�commissioned�a�jointly�funded�piece�of�work,�led�from�the�BID,�about�the�planning�requirements�and�

planning�consultation�on�London�Bridge�Station�and�there�was�significant�take-up�of�those�recommendations.��

That�was�the�voice�of�businesses�in�that�place�being�articulated�through�the�BID�model,�which�was�incredibly�

valuable�to�all�the�stakeholders�of�that�place.��That�is�the�conduit�you�can�be�when�you�are�in�that�kind�of�

position.�

�

Heart�of�London�and�Baker�Street�[BIDs]�have�both�done�a�variety�of�public�realm�investments�and�particularly�

have�also�been�leading�parts�in�renewing�two-way�carriageway�schemes.��They�have�been�a�leading�part�in,�

again,�creating�that�business�voice�and�that�commercial�view�of�the�benefits�and�disbenefits.�

�

Camden�Town�[BID]�I�would�use�as�another�example,�particularly�the�work�they�have�done�on�the�Camden�

Collective,�which�is�essentially�about�investing�in�incubator�space�and�bringing�the�creative�industries�up�and�

into�the�area.��They�have�started�place-shaping�by�that�kind�of�evolution.�

�

Victoria�and�some�of�the�other�central�London�[BIDs�have�been�physically�investing�in�public�realm�and�that�

starts�creating�a�change�in�a�place.��We�are�definitely�seeing�that.�

�

What�I�would�then�come�back�and�say,�though,�is�that�we�must�continually�be�very�aware�that�there�are�215�

BIDs�out�there�of�vastly�different�scales.��To�come�on�to�your�question�about�London�and�whether�London�is�

different,�it�definitely�is�for�a�number�of�reasons�but�there�is�not�entirely�a�London�style�and�a�non-London�

style.��We�have�46�BIDs�in�London.��A�number�of�the�BIDs�in�London�are�more�non-London.��If�I�take�Kingston,�

Bromley�when�it�is�established,�Croydon�and�Ealing,�they�tend�to�operate�much�more�like�a�county�town�BID�in�

the�way�that�historically�they�would�have�done�before�London�was�stretched�out.��They�are�operating�as�outer�

London�town�centres,�typical�large�high-street�BIDs,�doing�a�whole�load�of�different�things�across�all�sectors.��

When�you�come�into�central�London,�the�big�central�London�commercial�districts�are�undoubtedly�the�most�

advanced�in�the�country,�but�they�were�the�first.��We�ran�the�first�Circle�Initiative�pilot�programme,�as�you�

know,�from�the�Central�London�Partnership�and�it�was�the�first�BID�to�be�established�in�the�UK.��They�are�

undoubtedly�further�ahead�but�they�also�have�a�greater�and�more�complex�landscape�to�deal�with.�

�

Page 21



�

We�are�gradually�starting�to�see�that�in�some�of�the�other�big�cities.��I�am�putting�together�at�the�moment�an�

informal�grouping�of�the�northern�cities�linked�to�the�Northern�Powerhouse�agenda.��We�have�two�BIDs�in�

Liverpool.��We�have�one�in�Manchester�under�CityCo.��We�now�have�one�in�Leeds,�a�new�one�in�Sheffield�and�

ones�in�Newcastle�and�Sunderland.��They�are�all�coming�together,�looking�at�each�other�and�realising�they�are�

similar.�

�

Then�in�London�we�have�a�whole�load�of�others.��There�are�much�smaller�and�we�might�call�them�high�streets�

but�you�would�probably�call�them�district�centres.��Then�there�are�the�six�industrial�ones,�which�are�very�

different�again.��Therefore,�there�are�a�whole�load�of�different�scenarios�going�on�in�London�that�must�be�

taken�in�their�individual�sectors�because�they�cannot�be�all�seen�as�one�homogenous�mass�of�46.��Their�greater�

comparisons�are�actually�elsewhere�in�the�country.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Is�the�offering�of�services�like�clubs�and�support�services�and�buying�collectively�to�win�some�

gains�a�trend�across�London�and�across�the�UK?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Yes,�very�much�so,�and�it�comes�back�to�that�point�of�the�

basic�principle�of�how�you�demonstrate�to�a�business�that�it�is�worth�investing�in�a�BID.��You�have�to�give�them�

something�and�often�the�thing�you�are�giving�them�is�the�ability�to�jointly�invest�in�something�and�therefore�

reduce�cost�or,�indeed,�to�jointly�invest�and�achieve�something�that�could�not�be�achieved�without�a�joint�

mandate.�

�

One�of�the�very�common�ones�now�across�the�country�is�some�kind�of�-�and�some�are�greater�than�others�-�

waste�management�initiative�that�is�run�out�of�the�BID�and�gives�the�BID�levy-payers�either�a�free�service�or�a�

subsidised�service.��It�could�not�almost�be�done�any�other�way,�but�a�BID�has�the�ability�to�create�that.��Often,�

you�will�find�you�have�200�or�300�business�benefiting.��In�Kingston,�certainly�in�this�case,�you�had�200-odd�

businesses�and�that�was�the�one�single�ticket�that�was�required�to�get�a�‘yes’�vote�out�of�those�businesses.��If�

the�BID�did�nothing�else,�they�were�still�happy�from�that�one�single�thing�because�there�was�a�basic�cash�

benefit�to�them.�

�

There�are�increasingly�all�sorts�of�different�joint�procurement�initiatives�and�joint�voice�initiatives.��As�I�say,�

Leeds�is�totally�at�the�other�end�of�the�spectrum�and�will�do�some�joint�procurement�but�for�them�it�is�about�

the�joint�voice.��It�is�the�big�city�voices�wanting�to�come�together�and�do�it�together.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��It�is�responding�to�the�needs�of�people�who�have�come�together�for�that�and�that�is�why�

they�are�taking�on�some�of�those�responsibilities.��Are�there�any�roles�that�BIDs�should�not�take�on?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Oh�yes!��Part�of�it�lies�in�the�answer�that�Ros�[Morgan]�gave�

right�at�the�beginning,�which�was�very�important.��She�said�in�relation�to�a�service�transfer�that�one�of�the�

conditions�of�the�service�transfer�was�that�it�should�not�be�detrimental�to�the�core�focus�of�the�BID.��The�

important�thing�must�be�that�a�BID�must�maintain�its�majority�focus�on�the�investment�of�those�businesses�

because�it�is�those�that�are�funding.��If�you�end�up�having�the�tail�wag�the�dog,�you�will�lose�the�BID�and�you�

will�lose�the�basic�premise�of�having�that�investment.��Therefore,�whilst�they�can�start�growing�out�and�doing�

all�sorts�of�other�things,�they�must�stay�very�true�to�the�basic�principle�that�this�only�exists�because�of�the�

money�that�is�there�and�that�is�driven�by�the�businesses�that�fund.�

�

As�to�what�they�should�and�should�not�do,�it�becomes�quite�noticeable�in�some�locations�that�things�just�are�

not�right�for�a�place.��Waste�management�would�be�a�good�example.��In�some�communities,�it�just�is�not�

relevant.��In�industrial�areas,�one�of�the�single�biggest�things�is�about�gating�private�roads�at�night,�about�

signing�roads�that�have�never�been�adopted�by�local�authorities�and�are�absolutely�critical�and�about�vehicle�

recognition�cameras�at�access�points.��None�of�those�things�are�ever�going�to�be�done�by�anybody�else.�

Page 22



�

�

My�starting�point�often�when�I�go�to�a�new�location�with�a�‘new�BID’�hat�on�and�talk�to�them�about�the�basic�

principles�-�and�Anna�[Minton]�will�hate�this�-�is�that�the�principle�of�a�BID�allows�you�to�take�that�basic�

principle.��If�this�entire�thing�was�in�single�ownership�and�had�a�roof�over�it,�we�would�call�it�a�shopping�centre�

and�we�would�manage�it.��We�would�manage�it�for�the�best�economic�benefit,�we�would�manage�it�for�the�best�

impact�and�we�would�manage�it�for�the�best�commercial�benefit,�but�we�would�take�into�account�the�views�of�

everybody.��Shopping�centres�may�be�seen�as�hugely�commercial�operations�but�they�exist�only�if�they�serve�

the�consumers�that�come�to�them�to�buy�the�goods.�

�

Actually,�particularly�retailers�-�and�forgive�me,�councils�-�often�are�better�in�touch�with�the�local�community�

than�the�councillors�are�because�they�are�the�ones�who�employ�them.��Kingston�has�28,000�retail-associated�

jobs.��They�have�the�staff�in�those�locations�day�in�and�day�out�and�they�have�the�customers�in�those�locations�

day�in�and�day�out.��They�tend�to�know�the�local�community�incredibly�well.��We�must�not�see�them�as�the�bad�

guys�and�not�understanding.��They�have�to�understand�the�local�community�to�be�able�to�sell�to�them.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��In�reality,�BIDs�need�a�responsive�local�council�to�work�with�to�deliver�because�they�do�not�

take�decisions.��They�offer�up�evidence�for�decisions�to�be�taken.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Absolutely,�yes.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Without�an�effective�council�being�responsive�to�those�issues�and�making�some�of�those�final�

decisions�on�the�public�realm,�it�would�not�happen,�would�it?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��No,�you�are�quite�right,�which�is�why�I�started�my�point�by�

agreeing�with�Anna�[Minton].��The�managing�of�place�is�for�all�of�the�stakeholders.��The�ballot�for�a�BID�is�

capturing�the�money�to�enable�us�to�reinvest.��The�BIDs�that�are�working�really�well�are�undoubtedly,�you�can�

demonstrate,�working�because�their�local�authorities�also�are�really�receptive�and�work�really�well.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��The�reason�I�asked�that,�Chairman,�is�that�we�might�want�to�look�at�local�councils’�roles�in�

terms�of�response�to�BIDs�and�some�of�the�issues�that�they�have�in�response�to�wider�residents,�not�just�the�

BID�area.��We�might�want�to�look�at�that�in�terms�of�evidence�when�we�come�to�write�the�whole�report.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��I�agree.��We�have�written�to�the�local�authorities,�all�of�them,�and�asked�for�

their�views�on�this.��That�is�one�of�the�things�that�is�an�interesting�thing�to�tease�out.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��Yes.��I�am�

going�to�keep�my�remarks�brief.��I�just�wanted�to�come�back�on�the�core�point,�which�is�what�BIDs�actually�do.��

As�has�just�been�explained�articulately�to�us,�they�deliver�an�income�stream�from�businesses.��What�does�that�

income�stream�provide�to�an�area?��The�essential�core�services,�I�believe,�come�under�the�‘clean�and�safe’�

banner,�which�is�cleaning,�marketing�and�security.��To�bring�the�picture�up�to�date,�quite�a�lot�of�BIDs�have�cut�

back�in�austerity�times�and�so�they�are�back�on�their�core�services,�which�are�cleaning�and�security.��That�

means�you�have�two�different�types�of�uniformed�officials�in�the�area�doing�lots�of�cleaning�and�you�have�lots�

of�security�guards�and�you�have�a�closed�circuit�television�(CCTV)�network.��Those�are�the�core�services.�

�

Do�we�need�all�these�security�people�in�our�cities?��Do�they�make�us�feel�safer?��I�would�argue�that�all�of�the�

security�personnel�does�not�make�us�feel�safer.��It�makes�us�feel,�actually,�more�unsafe.��That�is�a�whole�

problematic�area�in�itself�that�we�probably�do�not�have�time�to�go�into�in�too�much�detail,�but�it�is�part�of�the�

core�role�of�BIDs:�increasing�the�private�security�presence�in�an�area.�

�

Page 23



�

The�other�point�that�Julie�[Grail]�raised�was�with�regard�to�looking�at�the�BID�as�an�entire�single-ownership�

entity,�which�she�said�I�would�not�like.��Yes,�that�is�one�of�my�criticisms.��She�has�probably�heard�the�phrase�

‘malls�without�walls’,�which�is�what�critics�in�the�US�call�BID�areas.��They�are�like�open-air�shopping�malls�but�

simply�without�the�walls.��They�have�the�security�guards,�they�have�the�CCTV,�they�have�the�business-led�

management�ethos�and�they�are�malls�without�walls.�

�

My�concern�with�the�discussion�today,�is�that�it�is�starting�from�the�assumption�that�we�have�X�number�of�

BIDs;�how�can�we�work�better�to�improve�the�situation�for�BIDs�in�the�UK?��That�does�not�start�from�a�position�

of�criticality.��Actually,�we�did�not�question�why�this�policy�came�into�the�UK.��We�now�have�something�like�

246�BIDs.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):�We�have�215.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��We�have�an�

awful�lot�of�them.��I�lived�in�Brixton�for�15�years,�during�which�time�Brixton�did�not�have�a�BID.��That�may�have�

changed.���It�has�also�changed�in�ways�that�have�disturbed�the�local�community�very�much�since�I�left�two-and-

a-half�years�ago.��I�now�live�in�East�Dulwich,�which�does�not�have�a�BID.��I�do�not�think�that�BIDs�enhance�the�

parts�of�London�I�know�well�enough.��I�am�not�going�to�comment�on�every�part�of�the�country,�but�this�

discussion�does�not�proceed�from�a�starting�point�of�criticality�of�the�policy.��It�is�more�about�how�we�can�

tweak�it�to�make�it�work�better.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Sorry,�very�briefly�just�on�two�points:�you�have�jumped�to�

an�assumption�that�there�is�a�proliferation�of�people�put�on�the�streets�by�BIDs,�but�what�I�actually�said�was�

that�the�starting�point�of�having�them�on�the�ballot�means�that�BIDs�are�then�governed�by�the�stakeholders�of�

that�place�and�in�partnership�with�that�place.��It�is�very�rare�that�you�see�a�BID�go�and�put�a�whole�load�of�

uniformed�staff�out�on�top�of�the�crowd�that�is�there�because�they�are�actually�about�adding�value.��If�there�is�

a�whole�crowd�of�people�doing�that,�the�BID�does�not�need�to�invest�in�that�and�needs�to�do�something�else.��

They�work�in�partnership.��Often,�a�BID�will�put�money�into�an�existing�scheme�and�enhance�it.��It�is�not�about�

layering�one�thing�over�another.��It�absolutely�is�not.�

�

On�the�other�point,�I�would�ask�it�almost�rhetorically�in�response�to�the�point�about�why�BIDs�exist.��BIDs�exist�

because�our�town�centres�needed�reinvestment�and�they�still�do�and�everybody�believes�that�that�is�an�

important�initiative.��BIDs�have�become�the�only�mechanism�to�ensure�money�is�part�of�that�because,�without�

money,�we�cannot�do�it.��The�public�sector�does�not�have�any�money�left�and�this�is�bridging�a�gap�in�

reinvestment�in�our�high�streets�and�our�commercial�areas.��If�you�can�come�up�with�a�great�alternative�I�am�

really�happy�to�work�with�you�on�it,�but�they�do�not�exist.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�live�there�

[in�East�Dulwich]�and�we�do�not�have�one.��It�is�great.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Maybe�it�[East�Dulwich]�does�not�need�reinvestment,�then.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Guy,�Hackney�is�well-known�on�regeneration�issues�and�no�doubt�you�would�have�

considered�the�issue�around�BIDs�with�your�partners.��Why�has�Hackney�not�gone�into�that�work?��Why�has�it�

not�developed�a�BIDs�policy?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��It�might�be�an�opportune�

moment�within�the�Hackney�context�to�take�a�quick�step�back�just�so�that�we�are�all�starting�from�the�same�

context.��As�part�of�Mayor�Jules�Pipe’s�administration,�which�started�just�after�2000�in�2002,�Hackney�as�a�

local�authority�-�as�I�am�sure�many�in�the�room�are�more�than�aware�of�-�was�in�an�very,�very�chronic�and�

Page 24



�

catastrophic�place,�quite�literally.��If�it�had�been�a�commercial�company,�it�would�have�been�bankrupt�and�it�

would�not�have�existed.��It�was�as�simple�as�that.��It�was�politically�dysfunctional�and�it�was�corporately�

dysfunctional.�

�

What�that�meant,�of�course,�more�crucially�in�all�of�this�was�that�anybody�in�the�local�community�-�whether�

they�were�living�there,�whether�they�were�working�there,�whether�they�were�a�business-owner,�whether�they�

were�an�employee�or�whether�they�were�a�resident�-�was�not�receiving�the�kinds�of�public�services�that�they�

should�have�been.��We�as�an�administration,�under�Jules’�[Pipe]�leadership,�embarked�on�a�programme�of�quite�

comprehensive�renewal�and�turned�the�local�authority�around.�

�

One�of�the�fundamental�principles�behind�delivering�quality�public�services�was�the�understanding�that�we�

could�not�really�go�off�and�ask�anybody�else,�a�third�party,�whomever�they�may�be,�to�invest�in�the�public�

services�around�them�-�whether�that�was�to�do�with�businesses�and�the�business�community�or�whether�it�was�

to�do�with�residents�-�because,�to�be�quite�frank,�there�was�such�a�chronic�lack�of�trust�in�the�local�authority�

and�its�ability�to�do�anything�that�that�needed�to�be�resolved�first.��Therefore,�we�set�about�rebuilding�public�

services�and�turning�the�efficiency�and�the�effectiveness�and�the�responsiveness�of�public�services�across�the�

piece,�whether�it�was�to�do�with�the�regulatory�framework�and�all�of�those�services�under�the�regulatory�

functions,�whether�it�was�to�do�with�creating�a�safer�space,�a�cleaner�space�and�a�greener�space,�all�of�that;�

and�also�a�socially�responsive�place,�a�place�where�social�investment�could�be�brought�about�and�reaching�out�

to�the�wider�community,�businesses�and�residents�alike.��That�continued�apace.�

�

One�of�the�great�catalysts�in�helping�in�that�process�of�rebuilding�was�undoubtedly�the�2012�project�and,�in�

the�12�years�leading�up�to�2012�itself,�we�were�very�heavily�involved�in�that�whole�process.��I�cannot�

underestimate�the�catalytic�effect�that�that�gave�us�amongst�a�number�of�different�activities�and�functions�that�

the�Council�was�engaged�in.�

�

One�of�those�was�around�economic�development�in�the�broadest�sense�of�the�word.��One�of�the�philosophies�

that�we�had�taken�forward�as�a�political�administration�was�to�ensure�that,�as�growth�began�to�emerge�in�the�

borough’s�local�economy,�the�wider�community�was�connected�to�that�growth�so�that�we�did�not�get�this�

fragmentation�going�on�within�a�community.��Some�would�call�it�‘gentrification’.��Some�would�just�call�it�

‘change’.��Some�would�call�it�‘growth’,�‘prosperity’�and�so�on.��However,�to�avoid�a�situation�where�nearly�

250,000�people�ended�up�becoming�a�fragmented�community,�our�business�community�remained�very�firmly�

connected�with�the�wider�residential�community�and�that�community�we�interpreted,�of�course,�as�people�of�all�

ages.��The�relationship�that�we�built�with�businesses�as�we�came�into�2009/10�and�onwards�to�where�we�are�

today�was�a�very�collaborative�one�with�the�local�authority�sitting�there�alongside�the�business�community�and�

sitting�there�alongside�the�community�of�residents,�too.�

�

I�should�just�remind�everybody�of�the�economic�context�and�the�business�base�itself�that�Hackney�has�now�

arrived�at.��Hackney�had�always�had�a�reputation�for�hosting�a�very�creative�and�very�innovative�economy;�

micro�and�small�business,�yes,�but�nevertheless�very�innovative.��What�has�gone�and�happened�since�2008/9�

and�the�global�crash�has�been�quite�an�extraordinary�step-change�in�what�Hackney�as�a�borough�and�as�a�

community�has�been�experiencing�in�terms�of�economic�growth.��It�has�become�very�clear�that�since�the�global�

crash�there�has�been�consistent�double-digit�economic�growth�in�Hackney’s�economy�and�that�growth�is�

showing�no�signs�of�flagging.�

�

However,�this�economy�is�driven�by�micro-�and�small�businesses.��It�is�not�driven�by�large�corporations.��Large�

businesses�and�large�corporations�are�beginning�to�move�into�the�area.��Very�shortly,�Amazon�will�be�locating�

its�European�regional�headquarters�into�Shoreditch,�for�example.��Google�has�a�presence,�obviously�not�on�the�

scale�of�King’s�Cross,�but�it�does�have�a�campus�presence.��All�of�this�is�geared�and�designed�to�tap�into�that�

Page 25



�

innovation�and�those�new�ideas�that�are�coming�out�of�what�is,�in�effect,�a�small-business�community.��It�totals�

some�12,000�small�businesses�clustering�around�a�number�of�different�areas.�

�

They�are�beginning�to�take�on�their�own�identities.��Around�Shoreditch�and�Hoxton,�the�Silicon�Roundabout�

proposition�is�creative�tech.��Around�Dalston,�there�is�undoubtedly�more�of�a�digital�media�presence�that�is�

emerging�and�product�design,�research�and�development.��Around�Hackney�Central,�what�is�becoming�very�

clear�-�alongside�the�public�sector�that�is�based�in�Hackney�Central�as�a�major�employer�of�some�many�

thousand�employees�-�is�also�the�fashion�industry�that�is�starting�to�cluster�around�design�and�manufacture�as�

well�as�retailing.��Then,�when�you�move�to�Hackney�Wick�and�the�changes�that�are�coming�forward�in�

Hackney�Wick,�they�are�quite�profound.��Again,�they�are�creative-led;�they�are�arts-led.�

�

This�is�the�important�aspect�of�the�Hackney�economy.��We�have�an�economy�that�has�quite�a�sophisticated�and�

complex�ecosystem�in�all�senses�of�the�word.��If�you�look�at�it�from�the�sectors�of�activity,�it�has�the�arts,�the�

sciences�and�the�humanities�embedded�within�it�and�it�is�the�way�it�is�functioning,�creating�and�setting�about�

creating�quite�an�advanced�digital�economy,�which�on�the�one�hand�bodes�extremely�well.�

�

The�challenge�that�this�throws�up�is�that�that�is�all�very�well�for�the�60,000-odd�people�who�are�working�in�

these�businesses,�many�of�whom�are�Hackney�residents,�but�what�about�the�other�100,000-odd,�some�of�

whom�could�be�in�employment�but�are�not�and�some�of�whom�are�in�work�but�are�commuting�long�distances�to�

get�to�that�work.��Can�they�be�part�of�this�growth�and�prosperity?��The�role�of�the�local�authority�is�

instrumental�in�collaborating�with�local�businesses�at�all�age�groups�from�paid�London�Living�Wage�internships�

and�apprenticeships�through�to�full-time�and�part-time�jobs�through�the�local�authority’s�job�brokerage�and�

positioning�residents�into�this�new�economy�at�many�different�levels.�

�

It�has�become�so�collaborative�that�we�now�have�businesses�investing�back�into�the�schools�and�into�the�

curriculum.��The�creative�tech�industries�-�in�the�very�broadest�sense�of�the�word,�which�involves�everything�

from�digital�media,�advertising�and�marketing�at�one�end�through�to�quite�sophisticated�software�and�app�

design�and�application�-�are�now�investing�in�the�curriculum.��The�reason�for�that�is�to�be�teaching�the�next�

generation�at�the�earliest�possible�opportunity�an�understanding�of�coding�and�to�ensure�that�there�is�a�new�

generation�of�men�and�women�growing�up�in�Hackney�who�understand�coding�and�its�contribution�to�that�

economy,�which�is�a�critical�skill�to�have.�

�

On�top�of�that,�there�are�of�course�great�initiatives�being�taken�forward�around�more�vocational-based�skills�

and�development�around�that�and�then�positioning�those�individuals�in�the�local�economy.��Often,�of�course,�

as�one�would�expect,�not�everyone�going�through�some�form�of�skills�development�or�coming�out�of�either�

college�or�university�is�going�to�end�up�in�a�job�in�Hackney.��Of�course�not.��They�will�probably�end�up�in�a�job�

somewhere�else.��It�is�as�likely�that�they�may�end�up�in�a�job�in�Hackney.��Who�knows?��The�point�is�that�we�are�

providing�a�route�into�employment�for�a�far�wider�community.��These�kinds�of�collaborations�are�proving�their�

worth�on�the�ground,�but�I�must�stress�that�it�is�a�very�complex�business�landscape�and�that�has�to�be�

recognised.�

�

Just�to�pick�on�perhaps�a�final�point,�if�I�may,�I�would�just�summarise�your�point�and�I�scribbled�down�here,�

“Democratisation�of�growth”,�really,�in�whatever�shape�or�form�it�comes�along.��That�could�be�about�finding�a�

job�or�it�might�be�about�starting�up�your�own�business�or�it�might�just�be�the�fact�that�you�live�on�the�other�

side�of�the�street�from�the�Tech�City�cluster.��There�is�an�interface�there�that�needs�to�be�thought�about�and�

acted�upon.�

�

As�has�rightly�been�said,�this�is�all�about�one�community.��We�do�not�see�it�just�from�the�point�of�view�of�

customers.��Customers�are�of�course�important�but�because�this�is�not�predominantly�a�retail-led�economy�-�

although�there�is�retail�there�and�it�is�an�important�ingredient�in�this�wider�creative�economy�-�they�are�not�the�

Page 26



�

primary�driver.��It�is�high-street�based,�predominantly,�and�it�thrives�around�pop-ups�and�it�thrives�around�

cultural�expression�of�one�description�or�another�and�that�is�crucial.��However,�when�we�talk�about�cultural�

participation�-�and,�Anna�[Minton],�I�think�you�were�mentioning�this�-�the�arts�are�the�platform�for�bringing�

people�together.��There�is�no�question�about�that,�whether�it�is�pop-up�theatre�or�live�performance�or�whether�

it�is�other�forms�of�artistic�expression�such�as�fine�arts,�sculpture�or�music,�for�example.��All�of�these�various�

activities�are�very�important�social�activities�for�bringing�a�community�together�and�developing�a�higher�level�of�

understanding.�

�

That�understanding�is�equally�as�important�-�and�this�has�been�stressed,�actually,�around�the�table�-�with�a�

local�authority�and�that�a�local�authority�understands�what�it�is�that�its�business�community�and�its�local�

entrepreneurs�require.��If�it�is�around�commercial�waste�services,�for�example,�there�is�a�local�authority�waste�

service.��Why�is�that�local�authority�not�able�to�fast-track�any�application�for�a�commercial�waste�contract�and�

just�deliver�it?��If�you�have�an�efficient,�publicly�owned�waste�service,�including�a�recycling�service�as�well,�then�

it�should�be�easy�to�do�because�that�collaborative�relationship�between�local�councils�and�local�business�is�such�

that�the�local�councils�will�have�a�portfolio�of�efficient,�effective,�responsive,�considered�and�considerate�local�

services�that�are�of�value�to�a�local�economy�and�a�local�business�community�as�much�as�they�are,�of�course,�to�

a�community�of�residents.��You�can�empty�bins�cheaply,�efficiently�and�effectively�for�businesses�and�for�

residents�at�the�same�time.�

�

The�same�thing�goes�around�a�safer�place.��Community�safety�in�its�broadest�sense�is�to�do�as�much�with�

managing�the�public�realm�and�managing�it�in�a�safe�way,�as�well�as�looking�after�it.��One�of�my�great,�perhaps,�

challenges�out�to�the�wider�community�is:�where�does�the�liability�rest?��If�you�are�the�one�that�is�going�around�

enforcing�in�the�public�realm,�if�you�are�the�one�whose�responsibility�is�to�take�care�of�the�public�realm,�then�

one�must�be�very�clear�about�where�liability�rests.��At�the�moment,�certainly�and�happily,�it�adopts�that�full�

responsibility.��It�is�absolutely�right�and�appropriate�that�a�public�body,�an�accountable�public�body�in�the�

broadest�sense�of�the�word,�remains�liable�for�the�public�realm�and�ultimately�should�be�responsible�as�to�when�

issues�arise�within�that�public�realm,�whether�it�has�impacted�on�a�specific�individual�-�because�they�have�gone�

and�fallen�over�because�the�pavement�is�in�a�rotten�condition,�for�example,�and�they�have�gone�and�hurt�

themselves�-�or�whether�it�is�more�institutional�than�that�and�it�is�actually�to�do�with�a�neighbourhood�of�

businesses�that�require�an�investment�to�be�made�to�market�to�encourage�footfall�one�way�or�another,�whether�

it�is�coming�from�local�or�further�afield,�as�you�were�saying.���

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��We�get�the�complex�background�and�the�different�relationships�you�have.��Is�it�fair�to�say�

that�if�Tech�City�did�not�have�the�central�Government�grants�that�it�receives,�it�would�be�a�BID�if�your�

businesses�decided�to�come�together�to�do�that�co-ordinating�work�within�that�sector?���

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��It�has�not�received�any�central�

Government�grants.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��It�has�not?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��No.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��I�am�sorry.��I�have�confused�it�with�the�--�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��No,�not�at�all.��I�think�you�were�

right.��Rumour�had�it�that�there�was�to�be�a�£50�million�investment�that�was�set�out�in�the�Chancellor’s�

Autumn�Statement�a�couple�of�years�ago.��Unfortunately,�Tech�City�has�not�seen�this�money�and�we�

understand�that�the�Mayor�of�London�has�received�this�money,�but�we�are�not�sure�where�it�has�gone.���

�

Page 27



�

Len
Duvall
AM:��All�right.�

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��I�am�not�going�to�answer�that�question,�but�

perhaps�what�you�are�thinking�of�is�Tech�City�UK,�which�was�the�inward�investment�agency�that�existed�to�

support�and�promote�Tech�City�organisations,�very�different�to�what�a�BID�would�do.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Is�it�very�different�in�terms�of�certain�areas�and�clusters�of�businesses�that�come�together�

and�that�could�decide�-�let�us�not�talk�about�demographic�-�to�come�together�to�take�a�vote�among�those�

businesses�to�vote�to�put�money�into�their�industry�for�the�very�issue�of�marketing�or�supporting�each�other�in�

terms�of�their�business�activity?��Why�is�that�different�then?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��First�of�all,�the�Tech�City�UK�

organisation,�which�the�[Hackney]�Council�does�collaborate�with�very�closely,�is�responsible�UK-wide.��That�is�

the�first�point�to�make�just�at�this�stage.���

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��Yes,�it�is�now.��You�are�right.���

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��Therefore,�it�is�not�just,�for�

example,�a�corner�of�east�London�that�it�focuses�on.��Indeed,�within�the�London�context,�as�you�can�probably�

imagine,�it�focuses�far�wider�than�just�that�corner�of�east�London.��It�is�an�organisation�that�is�there�to�assist�

with�advocacy,�brokerage�and,�to�a�degree,�marketing.��It�sits�alongside,�as�we�would�see�it�from�a�local�

authority�perspective,�UK�Trade�&�Investment,�the�Government�department�[non-ministerial�department].��

Could�there�be�a�closer�and�more,�perhaps,�meaningful�and�relevant�relationship?��If�you�talked�to�some�

businesses,�they�would�say,�“Yes,�that�would�be�really�helpful�if�in�fact�there�was�more�of�a�localised�area-

based�initiative�that�was�more�focused�on�that�specific�area”.��For�others�who�perhaps�have�a�slightly�higher-

level�corporate�view�of�the�world�and�indeed�of�their�business�activities,�they�may�think�slightly�differently.��

They�may�think�it�is�better�to�have�a�national�organisation�rather�than�just�a�local�one.��The�jury�is�out.�

�

What�I�would�say�from�a�council�perspective,�looking�to�the�future,�is�that�we�would�welcome�an�area-based�

partnership�that�remained�fully�accountable�in�terms�of�its�mandate�and�in�terms�of�its�governance,�

collaborating�with�businesses,�collaborating�with�central�Government�and�regional�government,�and�perhaps�it�

is�the�role�of�regional�government�to�be�the�curator�of�that,�whereas�actually�what�is�happening�is�the�area-

based�partnership�itself�is�taking�forward�what�in�effect�would�be�the�growth�strategies�for�those�activities�of�

businesses�in�the�area,�and�bringing�the�local�regulatory�framework�into�bearing�alongside�that.��

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Just�to�clarify�in�terms�of�pressures�on�your�budget�to�deliver�in�terms�of�localities,�high�

streets�and�other�maybe�business�support�issues�that�you�would�entertain,�how�would�you�see�that�fitting�into�

the�legislation�framework�that�allows�the�private�sector�to�invest�more�in�those�activities?��That�is�the�BID�

legislation.��Is�that�an�alternative?��Do�you�just�think�we�might�need�to�lobby�for�changes�in�the�way�this�BID�

legislation�works�to�deliver�what�you�just�told�the�Committee?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��Two�things�very�briefly,�Len,�just�

to�respond�to�that.��The�first�is�that�we�are�already�gathering�a�levy.��It�is�sector-specific�and�it�is�to�do�with�a�

number�of�new�hotel�developments�that�are�coming�forward,�some�of�which�are�already�on�the�ground�and�

others�to�come�over�the�next�couple�of�years.��What�has�been�very�rewarding�for�everyone�involved�to�date�has�

been�the�establishment�of�a�room�levy,�which�is�a�obviously�a�voluntary�levy�per�night,�per�room,�paid�for�by�

the�guest.��It�has�three�very�clear�focuses�on�spend,�which�have�already�been�referenced�one�way�or�another:�

employment,�skills,�marketing�the�local�area�one�way�or�another�and�so�on�and�so�forth.��That�is�a�collaboration�

with�the�local�authority.��In�a�sense,�we�could�already�do�it.���

�

Page 28



�

What�I�would�say�perhaps�around�any�sort�of�improvement�district�legislation�is,�if�anything,�it�is�just�to�enable�

more�flexibility.��The�other�point�that�has�been�made�is�that�I�am�talking�about�Hackney�in�a�very�specific�set�of�

circumstances�and,�as�has�been�pointed�out,�Kingston�is�very�different,�as�you�were�saying;�likewise�around�the�

rest�of�country.��They�are�all�different�with�different�environments�and�all�sorts�of�different�reasons�and�

challenges.��It�just�feels�as�if�this�is�more�about�flexibility,�perhaps,�rather�than�saying,�“This�should�change�to�

this�or�to�that”.��However,�I�will�not�let�go�of�the�business�around�accountability�and�transparency�and�

increasingly�that�is�becoming�more�important.��We�are�seeing�some�changes�beginning�to�emerge�in�the�

Olympic�Park�around�this�and�its�future�and�its�future�management,�and�perhaps�another�way�of�interrogating�

this�agenda�is�to�look�at�the�Canary�Wharf�Group,�for�example,�and�the�way�in�which�it�runs�and�manages,�to�all�

intents�and�purposes,�the�Canary�Wharf�estate.��Clearly�that�is�an�organisation�in�a�slightly�different�position,�

but�there�we�go.�




Len
Duvall
AM:��Thank�you.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Councillor�Nicholson,�I�am�paraphrasing�and�I�might�be�paraphrasing�badly,�but�the�

message�I�had�from�you�was�that,�with�regard�to�Hackney,�your�view�was�there�was�no�need�for�a�BID�because�

basically�the�Council�did�the�things�that�a�BID�would�do.��Obviously,�all�local�governments�are�facing�

constrained�budgets�and�so�I�am�just�curious�as�to�what�would�be�the�resolution�if�a�local�cluster�of�businesses�

in�a�particular�area�or�particular�sector�said,�“Look,�we�want�this.��This�is�the�bells-and-whistles�solution�and�we�

regard�it�as�unfair�to�demand�of�local�government�something�that�is�outside�its�core�responsibility�of�delivery”,�

and�saying,�“Look,�we�completely�understand�that�we�are�asking�for�the�platinum-plated�as�a�time�when�really�

it�is�only�fair�to�ask�you�to�deliver�the�basics,�but�we�are�willing�to�fund�it.��You�are�providing�this�

foundation-level,�good-quality�service.��We�are�very�happy�with�that,�but�there�is�this�additionality:�we�are�

happy�to�fund�it”.��Are�you�suggesting�that�that�could�be�precluded�and,�if�not�precluded,�how�would�that�

work�within�the�non-BID�environment�that�you�are�describing?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��James,�indeed,�thank�you�for�that�

question.��There�is�quite�a�straightforward�response�to�that.��Again,�that�is�already�happening,�where�the�

borough,�as�you�say,�goes�beyond�the�remit�of�either�being�a�broker�or�an�advocate�or�a�service�provider�of�

some�description,�and�you�end�up�into�that�territory�where�there�are�bells�and�whistles�or�we�want�that�thing�

that�is�not�really�the�competency�of�the�local�authority.�

�

For�example,�we�have�just�opened�the�third�iteration�of�Hackney�House�Black�and�Hackney�House�Black�is,�to�

all�intents�and�purposes,�a�building�given�over�to�promotion�and�marketing.��It�is�accessible�to�the�wider�

business�community,�and�not�just�within�Hackney�but�from�abroad.��In�addition�to�that,�it�is�part�of�a�portfolio�

of�Hackney�Houses,�and�Hackney�Houses�are�basically�pop-up�and�temporary,�but�it�goes�off�to�the�

South�by�Southwest�Festival�in�Austin,�and�each�year�there�will�be�Hackney�House�Oslo.��There�are�

conversations�going�on�with�Hackney�House�Barcelona�and�so�on�and�so�forth.�

�

These�bells�and�whistles,�which�the�local�authority�has�no�jurisdiction,�competency�or�indeed�resources�for,�are�

done�in�exactly�that�kind�of�collaborative�way�that�I�was�talking�about,�the�finances�coming�from�the�wider�

business�community�for�those�very�specific�interventions.��If�we�can�make�these�things�pay�for�themselves,�that�

is�great.��If�it�is�to�do�with�increasing�trade�for�Hackney�businesses�-�South�by�Southwest�being�a�case�in�point�

and�taking�Hackney�House�to�Austin�-�then�the�most�recent�figures,�£7�million�worth�of�contracts�signed�by�

Hackney�businesses,�that�is�good.��That�is�good�for�a�small�borough.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Who�pays�for�that?�

�

Page 29



�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��It�is�a�combination.��It�is�

businesses�of�different�types�and�sponsorship�of�different�types.��The�only�costs�put�in�by�the�local�authority�

are�the�wages�of�the�town�centre�managers�and�the�business�development�officers�and�so�it�is�a�no-cost�--�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��What�I�am�reading�from�this�is�that�because�you�are�able�to,�you�do�--�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��Yes.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��--�rather�than�thinking,�“It�needs�to�be�done,�but�does�it�need�to�be�done�by�us?”��

In�the�whole�‘can�I,�should�I,�must�I’�in�terms�of�the�delivery�of�functions,�it�strikes�me�that�the�tone�from�

Hackney�is�that�you�encompass�the�‘must�I’,�the�things�we�must�do,�the�things�that�in�the�ideal�world�you�

should�do,�but�also�you�are�encompassing�things�that�you�are�able�to�do�just�by�virtue�of�the�fact�you�are�able�

to�do�them,�rather�than�perhaps�looking�at�whether�there�is�someone�else�that�could�do�that�just�as�effectively�

without�--�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��No,�our�objective�is�about�

spreading�prosperity�and�using�that�local�economy.��The�opportunity�about�Hackney�House,�with�its�particular�

economy,�to�spread�that�prosperity�as�far�into�the�community�as�we�possibly�can.��That�is�very�much�around�

skills�and�jobs,�and�that�is�the�ultimate�objective.��With�that�come�a�number�of�other�different�nuances�and�so�

on�and�so�forth�to�do�with�the�corporate�social�responsibility�and�the�understanding�of�that,�and�indeed�the�

additional�contributions�that�may�be�being�made�for�specific�outcomes.��The�hypothecation�proposition.��That�

has�already�been�touched�upon�through�BIDs.��That�is�where�we�are�today.���

�

Looking�to�the�future,�as�has�been�pointed�out,�is�that,�like�all�local�authorities,�Hackney�at�the�moment�is�

going�through�an�exercise�where�it�has�to�take�another�£60�million�out�on�top�of�£130�million�it�has�already�

taken�out�of�its�base�revenue�budget.��That�is�profoundly�going�to�change�the�very�nature�of�Hackney,�as�

indeed�it�will�every�single�council.��They�are�being�structurally�reformed,�quite�literally,�and�it�is�being�forced�

down�from�above.��That�opens�up�a�very�different�set�of�problems,�and�there�is�no�question�that�the�

regeneration�portfolio�sits�as�one�of�those�issues�going�forward.��It�is�not�a�statutory�service.��It�is�very�

important�and�very�relevant�to�the�wellbeing�of�a�community,�but�it�is�not�statutory.��I�fear�that�the�business�

rate�proposition�is�--�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Can�I�just�stop�you�on�that�because�we�are�going�to�ask�a�question�--�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��I�am�going�to�come�on�to�that�later,�actually.���

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��All�right.��Sorry�to�have�interrupted�you.��I�have�two�other�witnesses�who�

have�indicated,�Anna�and�then�Ros�[Morgan],�and�then�we�are�going�to�have�a�short�video.��This�is�one�of�

those�subjects,�BIDs�generally,�that�we�have�learned�very�rapidly�that�we�could�spent�probably�until�about�

5.00pm�talking�about.��Sadly,�we�have�another�hour�and�there�is�a�lot�of�ground�to�cover.��The�contributions�

we�have�had�from�witnesses�so�far�have�been�absolutely�excellent�and�exactly�what�we�wanted.��If�they�could�

be�slightly�more�concise�over�the�next�hour�as�well,�though,�that�would�be�greatly�appreciated.��Anna�and�then�

Ros�[Morgan],�and�then�we�are�going�to�have�a�brief�video.���

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��I�will�try�to�

keep�my�comments�brief.�

�

I�thought�Councillor�Nicholson’s�presentation�was�really�fascinating,�actually.��The�key�word�for�me�in�it�was�

‘nuance’.��We�need�a�nuanced�approach�if�we�want�to�keep�creativity�in�our�cities.��What�does�‘creativity’�really�

mean?��It�is�another�buzzword.��Artists;�interesting,�innovating�people�who�are�in�tune�with�today’s�economy,�

Page 30



�

who�have�horizontal�networks,�who�work�in�a�really�contemporary�way.��How�do�we�do�that?��Obviously,�artists�

do�not�make�a�lot�of�money.��We�all�know�that.��I�have�not�talked�to�Guy�[Nicholson]�about�what�Hackney�

does.��I�know�what�Hackney�used�to�do.��I�suspect�they�have�some�policies�that�subsidise�artists.��I�suspect�they�

have�some�spaces�that�give�artists�cheap�rent�and�enable�them�to�stay�there.��They�give�them�cheap�studio�

space�and�they�give�them�cheap�housing,�I�suspect,�because�otherwise�you�do�not�get�these�creative�people�in�

an�area.��Once�it�starts�to�be�successful,�it�begins�to�boil�up�and�bubble,�a�bit�like�Shoreditch�has�done,�and�

they�all�move�out�and�it�becomes�the�much�blander�corporate�picture�that�we�are�all�familiar�with.���

�

I�did�quite�a�lot�of�work�on�this�creative�economy�around�2002�and�2003�in�Newcastle,�where�there�was�some�

really�interesting�work�being�done�by�the�local�authority�there�and�other�local�authorities,�where,�for�example,�

the�property�department�was�working�in�collaboration�with�the�environmental�services�department�to�give�

cheap�spaces�to�artists�in�the�former�industrial�parts�of�the�city�which�were�being�regenerated.��These�were�

really�brilliant�and�inspiring�policies,�and�they�included�proper�affordable�and�social�housing�at�the�same�time,�

and�they�were�about�building�a�real,�balanced�economy.��I�was�really�supportive�of�these�policies.��They�were�

not�perfect,�but�this�is�one�of�the�things�that�have�driven�my�critique�of�the�management�approach�to�cities.��It�

is�not�nuanced.��It�is�about�the�bottom�line.��It�is�about�bringing�in�as�much�revenue�as�you�can�for�a�place,�and�

that�is�first�and�foremost�what�it�is�about.���

�

We�talked�about�how�legislation�could�be�improved.��You�mentioned�flexibility,�and�you�also�stressed�

accountability.��Democratic�accountability�is�absolutely�the�key.��Approach�is�the�key,�though,�too,�and�you�did�

mention�the�Canary�Wharf�estate.��The�Canary�Wharf�estate�is�obviously�managed�with�the�bottom�line�and�

high�security�in�mind.��Hackney�clearly�is�not.��It�is�also�about�approach�and�the�spirit�of�the�place�and�public�-�

if�we�can�slightly�reclaim�that�word�for�that�discussion�-�ethos�of�a�place�you�want�to�create.��If�you�want�to�

create�a�balanced�economy,�you�need�to�have�that�public,�democratic-driven�ethos.�I�will�just�leave�it�there.��

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

I�will�be�short.��I�would�be�very�concerned�if�we�were�

saying�that�it�had�to�be�either/or�in�terms�of�local�authorities�or�BIDs.��I�do�not�think�that�should�be�the�

question.��It�is�whatever�is�right�for�a�particular�area,�and�I�am�hoping�that�today�some�of�the�examples�that�

have�been�given�just�demonstrate�that�each�BID�tailors�to�the�area�as�opposed�to�the�other�way�around.���

�

What�does�concern�me�about�the�conversations�today�is�I�personally�believe�there�are�lots�of�assumptions�

being�made�about�BIDs,�which�are,�in�my�view,�inaccurate.��Using�the�term�‘doing�things�that�a�BID�would�do’�

conjures�up�all�sorts�of�things�and�I�could�not�pinpoint�that,�because,�in�my�view,�again,�it�is�only�limited�by�

what�those�businesses�want�in�that�area.��There�are�areas�that�would�not�look�at�safety�or�cleaning�or�greening,�

and�it�is�about�public�realm�or�it�is�about�regeneration,�because�that�is�what�is�right�for�that�area.���

�

That�leads�me�on�to�what�may�be�a�question�you�are�going�to�get�to.��If�I�was�to�ask�support�of�the�Mayor�and�

the�GLA�it�would�be:�we�need�your�support�in�dispelling�some�of�these�myths�and�eroding�some�of�these�

assumptions�and�actually�providing�much�more�clarity�around��not�just�what�a�BID�is�now�but�what�a�BID�has�

the�potential�to�be�in�the�future.��We�need�better�understanding�and�better�communication.���

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��We�are�going�to�slightly�vary�what�we�are�doing�now.��We�have�a�short�two-

minute�film.��Our�external�relations�people�went�out�to�the�Streatham�BID�and�they�interviewed�four�of�the�

businesses�that�were�there.��This�is�not�necessarily�representative�of�the�views�of�all�of�the�businesses�within�

the�BID.��It�is�merely�a�straw�poll�or�vox-pop�that�we�have�taken.��This�video�will�be�made�available�online�

afterwards�but�it�is�just�two�minutes�long�and�then�we�will�take�some�questions�on�this�straight�afterwards.���

�

[Video�played]5�

                                                 
5�To�watch�the�video:�https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Kiwr5Fl1MGU&feature=youtu.be�

Page 31



�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Apologies�for�the�awful�music.��It�is�not�my�doing,�I�assure�you.��Julie,�do�

you�recognise�some�of�the�issues�that�were�described�there�by�some�of�those�businesses?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Absolutely.��It�is�interesting�that�the�recycling�project�was�

used�as�an�example.��It�often�is�the�very�tangible,�easy�to�understand�example,�where�a�business�sees�a�direct�

financial�saving�and,�therefore,�they�think�it�is�a�great�thing,�and�there�are�many�other�projects�of�that�nature.���

�

It�is�interesting�just�to�pick�up�on�the�first�one�first,�though,�where�the�first�chap�was�saying�he�is�not�happy�

because�the�first�thing�he�knew�about�it�was�when�he�got�a�bill,�and�he�did�not�think�the�ballot�was�run�

properly,�and�that�just�absolutely�smacks�of�poor�consultation�and�engagement,�which�I�would�absolutely�

concur�with.��The�examples�I�gave�right�at�the�beginning:�some�locations�have�done�this�very�badly�and�have�

not�engaged�their�business�communities�properly.�

�

If�I�bring�one�of�the�most�recent�examples,�Greater�Yarmouth�BID,�which�has�called�itself�the�Tourism�and�

Business�Improvement�District,�and�I�do�not�know�how�much�you�have�seen�about�this�but�it�is�very,�very�noisy�

in�the�media.��It�went�to�ballot�in�February/March�of�this�year.��It�is�outside�the�town�of�Great�Yarmouth.��It�

had�huge�discontent�from�its�business�community�at�the�point�the�bills�went�out�in�April�because�most�

businesses�knew�nothing�about�it�until�that�point�and�it�was�only�a�19%�turnout�at�ballot.��That�is�just�not�

acceptable.��We�do�not�think�that�is�acceptable�and�I�do�not�think�anybody�does.��One�of�the�major�levy-payers�

there�is�a�power�station,�and�he�is�a�perfectly�articulate�guy�who�is�saying,�“Do�not�get�me�wrong,�I�am�happy�

to�support�my�local�community,�but�just�remind�me:�what�does�a�power�station�have�to�do�with�investing�in�

tourism?��I�did�not�know�about�it,�either”.��That�first�point�really�comes�to�the�nub�of�a�lot�of�the�concerns�we�

have�been�bringing�to�Government�for�the�last�few�years�about�sharpening�up�the�practices�of�BIDs�so�that�the�

transparency�and�accountability�thing�is�really�core.���

�

We�published�in�July�of�this�year�The�Guiding�Principles�of�a�Well-Managed�BID�and�it�is�about�coming�to�the�

nub�of�the�principles:�consultation�and�engagement,�the�transparency�and�accountability�point,�governance�

and�management�once�it�is�established,�and�then�reporting�and�monitoring�once�it�is�delivering.��We�put�into�

Government,�through�the�Government�review�of�BIDs,�quite�a�number�of�detailed�propositions,�having�worked�

with�our�members�and�worked�through�with�Government�how�we�can�sharpen�this�up.�

�

If�I�just�pick�up�two�or�three�points,�one�is�this�principle�of�open�engagement�and�consultation�should�

absolutely�be�a�must,�but�the�legislation�is�quite�weak�on�this.��At�the�moment,�the�starting�point�is�a�

notification�to�the�Secretary�of�State�from�a�BID�proposer�to�flag�that�a�ballot�is�going�to�take�place.��That�

comes�84�days�out�from�the�point�where�the�notice�goes�to�businesses�that�they�are�going�to�have�a�vote.��

Therefore,�it�is�126�days�out�from�the�final�day�of�ballot.��That�absolutely�should�be�long�enough�if�people�

have�done�things�correctly.��However,�there�is�nothing�in�the�legislation�that�is�tight�enough�to�insist�a�local�

authority�tests�the�consultation�proof�of�evidence�from�a�local�BID�proposer�before�it�allows�that�location�to�go�

to�ballot,�and�we�are�saying�all�of�that�has�to�be�brought�forward�to�that�notification�point�-�we�have�written�

this�up�and�we�can�supply�this�to�you�-�so�that�actually�the�publicly�open�information�becomes�available�126�

days�out.��We�have�recommended,�for�example,�that�the�local�authority�should�hold�a�public�page�for�each�BID�

location�on�its�own�site�from�that�day�forward�with�all�of�the�checklist�of�the�legal�obligations�from�that�point�

forward,�so�that�there�is�not�anything�hidden�here.��It�is�not�in�any�of�our�interests�to�have�this�hidden.��

Nobody�wants�to�run�a�bad�BID.��What�that�would�enable�is�much�more�openness.��It�is�a�stick�and�carrot,�

because�if�those�that�are�not�engaging�and�consulting�well�know�that�is�going�to�happen,�they�are�going�to�

have�to�do�it�better.��I�completely�recognise�that�first�guy’s�point�[in�the�video]�and�absolutely�concur�with�

                                                                                                                                                                                

�

Page 32



�

him.��If�that�was�the�case,�that�is�not�acceptable,�that�is�not�reasonable,�and�we�have�to�make�sure�we�sharpen�

this�up.��There�are�quite�a�lot�of�other�things�about�local�authorities�that�I�am�happy�to�come�back�to.���

�

It�is�interesting.��The�other�two�points:�it�would�be�an�interesting�debate�about�what�the�lady�[in�the�video]�

thinks�more�responsibility�means.��I�wonder�what�she�wants�and�whether�she�could�deliver�it�if�she�had�it.��The�

final�point�about�now�knowing:�again,�it�is�communication,�is�it�not?��No�business�in�a�location�receives�a�

welcome�pack�from�anybody.��The�welcome�pack�is�a�business�rates�bill.��The�second�welcome�pack�now�is�a�

BID�bill.��What�BIDs�are�getting�much�better�at�doing�is�ensuring�they�get�data�from�a�local�authority�at�the�

point�at�which�a�business�is�on�a�business�rates�bill,�or�indeed�often�it�is�the�other�way�round:�the�BID�finds�the�

business�first�and�does�genuinely�provide�a�welcome�marketing�pack�for�the�place�before�they�get�their�bills,�

because�that�is�not�a�good�welcome�to�Streatham�or�anywhere�else,�is�it?���

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��It�is�not�great.��

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��A�couple�of�questions.��I�know�you�already�mentioned�the�current�

environment�of�hostility�during�that�situation.��If�councils�can�no�longer�afford�to�employ�town�centre�

managers�or�run�particular�services,�is�it�really�a�bad�thing�that�BIDs�can�take�over�either�providing�those�

services�or�taking�up�some�of�the�roles�which�traditionally�local�authority�plays?�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��Yes.��To�be�

honest,�I�am�critical�of�the�town�centre�management�approach�because�that�is�what�preceded�BIDs.��I�am�

critical�of�taking�a�business�management�approach�to�how�we�create�the�most�vibrant�and�diverse�and�

balanced�economies�in�our�cities.��As�I�said�before,�it�is�all�about�nuance�and�delivering�democracy�alongside�

growth�is�a�very�nuanced�and�complex,�creative�activity,�which�is�not�actually,�to�my�mind,�about�business�

management.�

�

I�am�really�sorry,�but�I�would�go�back�much�beyond�that�to�a�totally�different�approach�to�looking�at�how�we�

manage�local�parts�of�the�city�and�I�would�look�much�more�to�continental�European�examples,�to�Scandinavian�

examples,�and�indeed�perhaps�to�some�of�the�work�of�Hackney.��I�do�not�actually�think�that�managers�are�the�

people�who�should�be�necessarily�running�high�streets.��I�do�not�actually�think�that�is�the�most�compatible�

approach�with�the�contemporary,�horizontally�networked�economy�and�the�creative�tech�start-ups�that�Cllr�

Nicholson�has�been�describing.���

�

By�the�way,�I�am�sure�that�Hackney�is�not�perfect,�but�–�




Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��No.�




Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��--��I�know�

it�a�little,�and�there�is�a�vibrancy�about�Hackney�that�I�am�very�concerned�that�Brixton�seems�to�be�losing.��

Brixton�is�now�the�centre�of�local�protests�and�demonstrations�and�broken�windows�outside�Foxtons,�and�I�

know�that�Hackney�has�gentrification�protests�and�issues�as�well.��We�need�to�revisit�the�way�we�look�at�our�

cities�altogether,�I�am�afraid,�and�perhaps�that�is�just�simply�too�big�a�task�for�this�report,�but�I�would�like�that�

to�be�noted�down.��As�I�said�before,�some�of�the�work�I�was�looking�at�in�the�early�2000s�was�really�exciting�

and�there�were�some�really�good�people�in�local�government.��I�do�not�know�what�has�happened�to�them.��I�am�

afraid�a�juggernaut�approach�took�over,�which�was�very�much,�“Let’s�deliver�as�much�growth�as�quickly�as�we�

possibly�can�based�on�property�and�land�values,�and�everything�else�is�by-the-by”.���

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Obviously�you�do�promote�very�strongly�alternative�strategy,�but�in�a�sense�

we�are�where�we�are.��What�accountability�mechanisms�would�you�like�to�see�in�place�to�make�the�best�of�what�

we�have�with�the�BIDs�there�are?�

Page 33



�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��It�is�a�really�

difficult�question�because�it�comes�back�to�how�we�can�tweak�it�to�make�it�work�better�when�actually�-�I�am�

sorry,�Ros�[Morgan]�and�Julie�[Grail],�it�is�difficult�in�this�context�-�it�has�been�very�damaging�to�parts�of�the�

city,�and�right�now�it�is�changing�Brixton�and�I�can�see�it�happening.��I�do�not�want�it�to�change�East�Dulwich,�

where�I�live�at�the�moment.�

�

That�is�a�very�difficult�question�for�me�to�answer.��We�should�rethink�the�policy.��We�already�have�too�many.��

We�should�do�what�Cllr�Nicholson�is�doing�and�stop�rolling�them�out;�end�of.��If�you�insist�upon�having�them,�

then�we�need�to�have�some�sort�of�mechanism�for�including�residents�in�the�ballot�because�they�are�not�

democratic�at�the�moment.���

�

The�final�point�is�security.��Perhaps�I�am�mistaken,�but�I�understood�that�more�security�under�the�banner�of�

making�places�safer,�ie�uniformed�security�guards,�was�very�much�part�of�BIDs.��

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Debbie,�you�used�to�work�in�Brixton�for�many�years.���

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��I�live�near�East�Dulwich.��It�is�very�much�my�

manor.���

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Is�the�BID�damaging�Brixton,�in�your�view?�

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��It�is�a�very�recently�balloted�BID�and�so�I�do�

not�think�we�can�blame�the�BID�for�anything.��It�is�worth�noting�in�Brixton�that�it�is�quite�an�unusual�and�

complex�BID�insofar�as�it�includes�all�businesses.��Usually�there�are�thresholds�and�things�that�mean�that�some�

businesses�are�not�included,�but�the�Brixton�BID�includes�all�businesses�and�I�do�not�know�but�I�assume�that�

that�was�done�in�order�to�include�everybody�and�not�just�the�bigger�players.���

�

Gosh,�we�could�go�way�beyond�5.00pm�if�you�are�going�to�talk�about�Brixton�and�there�are�clearly�a�lot�of�

complex�issues�there.��One�of�my�views�about�Brixton�is�that�I�do�not�agree�that�change�is�just�happening�now.��

Property�in�Brixton�has�been�astronomically�expensive�since�I�worked�there�many�years�ago.��It�is�at�the�end�of�

the�Victoria�line.��It�is�a�very�convenient�place�to�live�with�some�great�housing�stock.��That�change�has�been�

happening�for�some�time�now.��What�has�triggered�the�current�controversy�is�the�Network�Rail�situation�and�

the�arches.��That�is�my�understanding�of�what�has�happened�there.���

�

To�come�back�to�your�question,�“Has�the�BID�changed�things?”��No,�because�it�is�so�recent�and�it�is�just�part�of�

the�landscape.��It�is�a�positive�thing�that�all�the�businesses�are�involved�there.��I�wrote�down�a�couple�of�the�

phrases�that�you�said�there,�Anna�[Minton],�and�one�of�the�points�that�I�would�disagree�with�is�that�you�said�

BIDs�are�running�high�streets.��High�streets�are�still�open�places.��To�contrast�it�with�More�London�[the�

managed�estate�within�which�City�Hall�sits]�here,�which�is�a�private�space�-�there�are�things�you�are�not�allowed�

to�do�in�More�London�-�a�BID�does�not�have�bylaws.��It�does�not�stop�anyone�doing�what�they�want�to�do�on�

those�high�streets.��It�provides�a�way�of�co-ordinating�resources�and�local�opinions�in�a�place,�and�my�opinion�

is�that�that�is�a�positive�thing.���

�

One�of�the�other�points�that�I�would�make�as�well�is�this�question�of�growth�keeps�on�popping�up.��Growth�is�

going�to�happen�whatever.��The�housing�agenda�and�the�housing�crisis:�the�general�consensus�is�that�we�need�

more�housing.��That�can�create�real�tensions�for�town�centres.��To�my�mind,�any�mechanism�which�creates�a�

focal�point�for�the�local�community,�be�it�business,�be�it�residential,�and�one�of�the�points�I�will�make�later�on�is�

that�there�are�many�models�of�town�centre�governance,�and�BIDs�are�just�one�of�them.��Anything�that�can�

Page 34



�

provide�an�opportunity�for�local�places�to�have�a�voice�and�make�sure�that�growth�is�good�and�not�just�a�

crusade�for�housing�numbers,�because�that�will�threaten�the�lifeblood�of�what�characterises�our�town�centres.���

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Guy,�you�wanted�to�come�in.���

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��It�was�only�to�very�briefly�pick�up�

on�the�point�that�Anna�[Minton]�raised�and�Debbie�[Jackson]�was�touching�upon�it�as�well.��It�just�goes�back�

to�that�point�about�looking�to�the�future,�and�you�were�mentioning�about�pressures�on�public�budgets�and�so�

on�and�so�forth�and�this�continuing�retraction�of�local�authorities’�resources,�basically,�to�be�able�to�deliver�

stuff.�

�

I�do�see�into�the�future�that�there�is�a�need�for�a�more�collaborative�and�localised�model�of�local�service�

delivery.��The�balance�and�the�tension�is�around�ensuring�-�I�am�just�beginning�to�repeat�things�a�little�bit,�so�

forgive�me�-�that�accountability,�call�it�democracy,�call�it�what�one�will,�and�governance�is�equal�to�that�of�the�

growth�imperative.��I�do�agree�with�the�proposition�around�the�tension�that�is�emerging�certainly�in�some�parts�

of�London�between�what�in�effect�is�work�space�and�the�demand�for�more�work�space�and�the�demand�for�

housing�in�one�form�or�another.��We�are�continually�having�to�engage�with�the�development�sector�in�and�

around�Hackney�to�strike�that�balance,�but�there�is�a�generation�of�developers�coming�forward�who�recognise�

the�commercial�opportunity�as�well�as�the�real�need�to�be�able�to�provide�both�in�the�developments�that�they�

bring�forward�in�these�very�inner�London�and�working�environments�and�neighbourhoods.��There�are�some�

positives�there,�but�it�relies�upon�that�very�close�collaboration�and�that�close�relationship�and,�I�suppose,�a�

degree�of�trust�between�all�of�the�parties�involved,�and�that�includes�the�residents�as�much�as�it�might�do�the�

business�community,�with�a�local�authority.���

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��If�I�can�ask�a�question�to�Julie,�followed�by�Debbie�[Jackson]:�what�leeway�

do�local�authorities�have�to�challenge�poor�decision-making�in�BID�areas?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��It�is�an�interesting�point.��If�we�take�it�back�a�stage,�as�I�

started�to�say�earlier,�the�legislation�for�BIDs�is�pretty�flexible�and�non-prescriptive,�and�with�that�have�come�a�

few�loopholes�that�could�and�should�be�sharpened�up.��This�is�an�area�that�I�believe�should�be�sharpened�up�

and�that�we�have�made�representation�in�the�Government�review�on�[BIDs].��In�essence,�a�local�authority�has�a�

whole�series�of�different�responsibilities�that�make�it��effectively�custodian�of�the�BID�legislation.��However,�in�

some�cases�they�are�just�not�doing�that�role.��Some�are�excellent.��I�would�hold�Westminster�City�Council�up�as�

excellent�in�doing�this.��Some�are�just�not�performing�their�role,�and�by�not�performing�their�role�what�we�often�

see�-�and�the�story�of�Streatham�and�the�story�of�Greater�Yarmouth�have�just�described�-�is�if�you�get�it�wrong�

at�the�beginning,�at�the�pre-BID�ballot�stage,�you�have�got�it�wrong�for�the�duration,�really.��Putting�the�things�

in�place�that�tighten�the�model�at�the�beginning�to�ensure�good�quality�consultation�is�done,�and�evidence�

ahead�of�a�local�authority�allowing�a�BID�proposer�to�take�this�BID�to�ballot,�and�ensuring�that�all�of�the�

relevant�mechanisms�and�legislative�elements�are�in�place�before�ballot�will�help�enormously.��However,�once�

you�establish�a�BID,�there�is�a�legal�requirement�in�the�BID�legislation�to�have�a�baseline�services�agreement�

documented�out�to�document�the�local�authority’s�commitment�ongoing�in�that�space,�and�a�local�authority�

should�not�allow�a�ballot�until�it�has�put�that�in�place.��Too�often�even�that�is�not�put�in�place�and�so�the�local�

authority�is�failing�its�business�community�by�not�doing�that�bit.���

�

There�is�then�an�obligation�-�but�not�a�legal�obligation�-�to�put�that�and�the�other�relationship�elements�into�

what�we�call�across�our�industry�an�operating�agreement,�but�it�is�a�contractual�relationship�between�the�BID�

and�the�local�authority�that�defines�levy�collection�and�enforcement�and�the�mechanism�for�doing�that�and�

service�monitoring,�both�sides.��Monitoring�of�the�baseline�service�commitment,�monitoring�of�the�delivery�of�

the�BID�services,�and�ensuring�that�ongoing�solid�and�robust�relationship�carries�on�and�must�carry�on.��Again,�

too�many�are�not�doing�that�and�not�committing�to�that�and�not�putting�enough�weight�into�the�importance�of�

Page 35



�

that�relationship.��These�are�the�kind�of�things�that�we�have�put�in�place�to�ensure�that�a�BID�starts�well�and,�

therefore,�has�the�propensity�to�be�delivered�well,�but�then�is�also�managed�and�governed�well.���

�

If�those�things�are�put�in�place�and�sharpened�up,�we�see�scope�for�a�local�authority�having�comfort�that�a�BID�

is�managed�well,�but�a�local�authority�should�not�be�controlling�what�a�BID�does�because�that�is�about�

spending�the�business�community’s�money.��It�is�about�having�that�wider�debate�and�relationship�and�

partnership�to�ensure�that�the�things�that�are�delivered�are�not�contrary�to�other�initiatives�in�an�area.���

�

I�will�jump�right�to�the�end.��What�is�interesting�in�the�legislation�-�we�debated�this�at�length�when�we�did�the�

Government�review�-�is�that�there�are�very,�very�limited�powers�at�the�moment�within�the�legislation�of�

termination�of�BIDs,�and�that�is�probably�a�good�thing�because,�ultimately,�coming�back�to�Ros’s�[Morgan]�

point,�the�essence�of�the�BID�model�is�merely�the�joint�bank�account,�is�merely�the�money�element,�not�the�

partnership�and�not�the�company�even.��It�is�the�money.��If�the�businesses�that�are�paying�that�money�are�not�

happy,�they�have�the�ability�to�terminate�that�BID.��Coventry,�city-wide,�right�back�in�2006�-�2008,�had�a�BID�

that�ran�outside�the�Coventry�city�centre�one.��It�was�2,500�businesses.��Businesses�hated�it�from�day�one.��

There�was�really�bad�consultation�and�500�of�those�2,500�disliked�it�from�the�start�of�it,�and�by�the�third�year�

got�themselves�on�the�board�and�terminated�the�BID,�and�quite�rightly.��That�is�what�businesses�should�be�able�

to�do:�terminate�the�obligation�to�pay�that�money.��That�does�not�mean�they�terminate�the�partnership�

company�or�any�of�the�relationships�that�are�going�on,�but�terminate�the�mandatory�levy�element.��We�must�be�

very�careful,�I�think,�to�see�the�difference�between�the�obligation�on�paying�a�mandatory�levy,�the�relationships�

that�exist,�and�that�absolute�need�of�formality�of�relationship�and�partnership�between�a�local�authority�and�a�

BID.��The�local�authority�does�not�approve�or�control�that�BID,�and�neither�does�the�other�way.��They�are�in�a�

partnership�together.���

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��Julie�said�everything�I�would�have�said.��I�

have�one�further�point�to�add�that�occurs�to�me�on�listening�to�Julie’s�response�and�actually�something�that�

Cllr�Nicholson�said�as�well.�

�

One�of�the�challenges�that�we�have�is�that�regeneration�is�not�statutory�for�local�authorities.��Therefore,�the�

amount�of�resource�in�that�service�differs�wildly�from�local�authority�to�local�authority.��Everything�that�Julie�

has�just�said,�what�that�tells�me�is�there�needs�to�be�a�resourced�client�within�the�local�authority�for�the�BID�

from�the�moment�it�is�an�idea,�and�if�that�capacity�is�not�there,�then�that�is�when�you�are�going�to�see�some�of�

those�levers.��The�levers�are�pointless�if�there�is�nobody�to�pull�them�in�the�town�hall.��That�is�the�only�point�

that�I�would�add.���

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��That�is�absolutely�right,�and�that�is�why�Westminster�is�so�

good�because�it�allocated�somebody�from�day�one.��That�post�has�existed�all�the�way�through�and�has�been�

the�co-ordinating�function�at�officer�level�and�member�level,�and�has�ensured�that�all�legislative�stuff�has�been�

adhered�to,�but�relationship�stuff�too.���

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):��Yes.��That�is�the�only�point�I�would�add.�




Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Thank�you.���

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��Sorry,�Chairman.��Just�to�pick�up�

on�both�Debbie’s�and�Julie’s�comments,�and�from�a�local�authority�perspective,�if�I�could�just�for�a�moment�put�

the�BID�into�the�context�of�the�Government’s�localism�agenda,�so�neighbourhood�planning,�for�example.��I�

know�there�is�a�reference�to�that�in�some�of�the�questions.��There�is�a�set�of�criteria�that�the�local�authority�has�

set�and�the�administration�have�set�for�the�local�authority�to�ensure�that�what�comes�forward�as�part�of�a�

submission�is�both�inclusive�and�it�conforms.��Then�something�of�worth,�something�that�is�challengeable�and�

Page 36



�

can�withstand�challenge�can�be�determined,�basically,�supported�or�approved�or�whatever�the�decision�is�that�

needs�to�be�taken.���

�

Increasingly,�under�the�localism�agenda,�both�of�those�two�criteria�are�proving�to�be�extremely�difficult�to�fulfil,�

that�what�you�bring�forward�is�inclusive�and�what�you�bring�forward�conforms�to�higher�legislation.��For�

example,�the�London�Plan,�if�it�is�a�planning�document.��They�are�crucial,�absolutely�crucial,�because�only�at�

that�point�can�one�really�turn�around�-�and�my�heart�and�sympathy�goes�out�to�everybody�involved�in�public�

consultation�and�communication�because�you�can�never�get�it�right�-�but�it�is�being�able�to�prove�that�

obviously�you�have�gone�out�there�with�the�best�intentions�to�reach�as�many�people�as�possible�and�you�have�

resourced�it�fully.��Sometimes�you�have�to�fall�back�on�that�rationale.��Nevertheless,�picking�up�on�that�

business�around�consultation�and�communication�is�crucial�in�delivering�the�inclusivity�side�of�the�criteria�set�

and,�if�you�can�prove�that�when�you�come�forward�with�your�submission,�then�a�council�representing�a�

community�and�certainly�a�group�of�elected�councillors�would�feel�far�more�comforted�that�those�two�very�

important�criteria�have�been�embraced�and�delivered�as�part�of�an�application,�and�I�think�that�applies�to�a�BID�

as�much�as�it�might�do�about�a�neighbourhood�plan�in�a�neighbourhood�forum,�for�example.�




Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you�for�that.���

�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��Going�back�to�the�relationship�between�BIDs�and�local�communities,�I�think�it�is�

probably�a�question�for�Julie�and�Anna�[Minton].��Do�you�have�any�real�examples�of�where�BIDs�have�been�in�

conflict�with�a�local�community�and�how�do�you�resolve�those�conflicts?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��There�are�some�of�the�examples�I�gave�earlier.��Let�us�come�

back�to�what�we�define�as�community�first.��I�believe�the�definition�of�community�is�everyone�that�works,�lives�

and�visits�that�community,�not�just�those�that�live�there.�

�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��Let�us�take�residents.���

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��When�we�talk�about�residents,�there�are�probably�

three-quarters�of�all�BIDs�that�have�residents’�voices,�through�a�variety�of�different�means,�on�their�boards.��

That�might�be�through�their�elected�councillors.��It�might�be�through�residents’�groups,�if�they�already�existed,�

or�indeed�had�been�created.��There�have�been�some�great�examples,�and�Bankside�would�be�one�of�them,�of�

really�working�in�partnership�with�those�communities.���

�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��What�happens�when�that�does�not�work�and�when�you�do�have�a�conflict�between�

residents�and�BIDs?�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Yes,�and�around�the�other�way.��If�it�does�not�work,�yes,�of�

course,�in�some�cases�-�Anna�[Minton]�would�be�one�of�these�people�in�one�of�these�locations�-�residents�in�

part�may�not�like�some�of�the�things�that�BIDs�are�investing�in,�but�I�would�go�back�to�this�taxation�without�

representation�issue.��Businesses�will�only�invest�in�our�places�if�they�have�representation.��We�know�that.��We�

know�that�you�can�get�a�few�willing�investors�into�something�historically�-�and�obviously�Guy�[Nicholson]�has�

achieved�this�at�the�moment�-�whilst�they�feel�they�have�some�control�over�the�spending�of�their�money,�but�

you�cannot�get�the�whole�unless�you�give�them�a�representative�model,�and�that�is�what�we�have�given�them�

through�BIDs.��Through�BID�boards�we�are�seeing�local�residents�getting�involved.���

�

If�they�want�full�representation,�and�there�have�been�advocates�doing�this�-�and�I�have�to�say�I�am�not�one�of�

them�-�we�could�extend�the�model�to�allow�residential�representation�as�well,�and�charge�them.��We�could�put�

a�residents’�levy�onto�a�BID�model�as�well.��Then�there�is�fair�representation�and�taxation,�is�there�not?�

�

Page 37



�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��That�does�not�actually�answer�my�question,�though.��What�happens�when�a�BID�wants�

to�do�something�and�all�the�residents�nearby�say,�“No,�we�do�not�like�it”?���

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��I�cannot�give�you�an�example�of�where�that�has�happened�

at�the�moment�because�there�is�--�

�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��Take�Baker�Street,�for�example.��I�understand�that�the�two-way�traffic�proposal�for�

Baker�Street�in�Westminster�is�being�proposed�by�the�BID�and�all�the�neighbouring�streets�where�residents�live�

say,�“No,�we�do�not�want�it.��We�are�happy�with�the�way�the�roads�are�now”.���

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��I�do�not�know�whether�that�is�all�residents,�and�it�is�certainly�

not�all�the�community,�is�it?��From�my�knowledge�of�that�one,�there�has�been�a�much�amount�of�support�for�

doing�that�and�there�have�been�some�residents�that�have�been�anti.��Fitzrovia,�for�example,�is�one.��Yes,�there�

were�some�very�vocal�residents�--�

�

Andrew
Dismore
AM:��Fitzrovia�is�the�Midtown�one.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��No.��Fitzrovia�had�Griff�Rhys�Jones�[actor�and�comedian]�

being�the�leading�anti-resident�at�the�point�of�ballot.��I�cannot�tell�you�whether�that�was�because�there�was�

poor�consultation�or�whether�residents�have�a�negative�feeling�towards�the�BID,�but�what�I�do�know�from�what�

I�am�being�told�now�is�that�there�is�a�very�different�relationship�in�that�place.��Often�the�negativity�is�created�

through�lack�of�communication.��In�the�Baker�Street�one,�I�do�not�know�it�well�enough�to�tell�you�whether�that�

means�the�business�community�should�not�invest�in�the�change�of�a�road�network�in�that�area,�but�as�Guy�

[Nicholson]�just�said,�we�know�in�anything�we�do,�whether�it�is�BIDs,�whether�it�is�through�GLA�investment,�

whether�it�is�through�regional/central�Government,�not�everyone�will�be�happy�all�the�time,�but�what�

everybody�does�in�this�should�be�good�attempts,�very�good�attempts,�at�comprehensive�representation�and�

consultation�so�that�they�genuinely�know�the�majority�are�supportive�of�the�action.���

�

There�will�undoubtedly�be�situations�where�residents�do�not�like�what�a�BID�is�doing,�but�I�would�come�back�to�

the�point�that�if�we�have�had�good�governance�and�we�have�had�local�elected�councillors�sitting�on�BID�boards�

shaping�that�future�alongside�the�businesses,�we�should�not�come�to�that�situation�because�we�should�have�an�

understanding�of�what�is�coming.��We�should�have�ensured�that�good�governance�says�we�understand�and�can�

anticipate�where�the�problems�are�going�to�arise.��That�is�not�happening�everywhere,�but�that�is�what�we�

should�be�seeking�to�do.���

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��It�comes�

back�to�where�we�initially�began,�really,�where�I�was�talking�about�democracy�and�I�said�that�a�couple�of�

councillors�sitting�on�the�BID�board�was�not�equivalent�to�democratic�representation,�and�I�do�not�think�it�is,�

although�of�course�you�will�hear�from�advocates�of�BIDs�that�in�different�places�there�are�different�outcomes.��I�

do�not�know�the�Baker�Street�example�in�any�detail:�but�the�BID�is�not�about�the�residents;�it�is�about�the�

businesses�and�the�views�of�the�businesses.��Therefore,�the�views�of�the�residents�are�not�actually�first�and�

foremost�the�consideration.��The�issue�of�good�governance�coming�back�to�a�couple�of�local�authority�

representatives�I�just�do�not�think�is�enough.���

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):��Can�I�just�ask?��Is�that�because�you�do�not�think�those�local�

ward�councillors�are�representative�of�that�community?��That�is�a�different�question,�is�it�not?��It�should�be.��

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):��That�is�

perhaps�10%�of�the�answer.��There�is�a�huge�democratic�deficit�in�local�authority�democracy�full�stop,�but�that�

is�only�a�small�part�of�the�answer.��The�BID�organisation�is�a�Business�Improvement�District.��It�is�a�company�for�

Page 38



�

the�local�businesses.��It�is�not�an�organisation�for�the�businesses�and�residents�and�citizens�of�the�wider�city.��

That�is�the�main�part�of�the�answer.�

�

Just�to�address�your�question�on�specific�areas,�my�job�is�not�as�a�researcher�of�BIDs.��Ros�[Morgan]�and�

Julie�[Grail];�that�is�their�job.��I�just�have�encountered�BIDs�in�wider�work�I�have�done�on�my�research�into�the�

privatisation�management�and�I�would�say�consequent�segregation�of�the�city,�and�also�a�look�at�alternative�

economic�strategies�which�favour,�I�would�argue,�more�creative�and�balanced�economies.��I�am�not�by�any�

means�a�BID�expert,�but�I�have�encountered�the�Fitzrovia�example�because�I�was�approached�by�quite�a�

number�of�residents.��Griff�Rhys�Jones�had�the�publicity�because�he�was�the�chairman�of�Civic�Voice,�which�is�

the�inheritor�organisation�to�the�Civic�Trust,�a�pretty�important�organisation,�but�he�was�just�the�representative�

famous�face�of�a�wide�body�of�local�opinion�there.��Of�course�you�will�hear�that�now�there�are�people�happy�

with�it.��I�am�sure�there�are�people�unhappy�with�it.�

�

I�can�just�give�you�a�couple�of�examples�from�my�own�research.��I�visited�Sheffield�a�few�years�ago�and�there�

were�concerns�about�the�security�operation�in�the�centre�of�Sheffield.��Most�of�the�concerns�I�encounter�

around�BIDs,�partly�because�I�have�done�quite�a�lot�of�work�on�the�impact�of�private�security,�whether�or�not�

we�need�it,�whether�or�not�it�is�good�for�us�--�I�tend�to�say�we�do�not�need�it�and�it�actually�makes�us�rather�

fearful.��It�is�driven�by�this�private�mall�approach.��They�like�it.��It�is�not�people�who�say,�“I�want�private�security�

companies�here”.��It�is�the�businesses�who�like�the�private�security�companies.��There�were�concerns�in�

Sheffield�about�the�private�security�guards.��There�were�concerns�in�Coventry�about�how�some�minority�groups�

were�being�treated,�ranging�from�homeless�people�to�photographers�and�students.��The�CCTV�cameras�are�

monitoring�the�behaviour�of�various�groups�in�ways�that�some�people�find�undemocratic�and�do�not�like.��You�

may�tell�me�different,�but�I�know�that�certainly�BID�groups�that�I�have�looked�at�have�been�very�focused�on�

making�sure�that�there�are�not�homeless�people�or�street�drinkers�in�town�centre�areas�and�they�are�moved�on.��

I�have�covered�this�in�the�report�I�have�written�a�few�years�ago,�which�preceded�my�books.��We�could�talk�on�

for�hours.��There�are�many,�many�examples�of�concerns.���

�

I�will�end�with�a�final�point,�which�is�that�BIDs�were�controversial�in�the�US�in�the�mid-1990s,�way�before�we�

brought�this�policy�over,�and�the�concerns�were�around�how�marginalised�groups�were�treated�by�the�BID.��It�

all�exploded�with�a�huge�New�York�Times�investigation�which�showed�what�was�happening�to�marginalised�

groups,�who�were�being�swept�out�of�the�city,�and�the�city�was�subsequently�cleaned�up.��That�was�the�starting�

point�for�all�my�work�into�this,�that�New�York�Times�investigation.��It�is�all�in�my�book.��I�will�stop�now.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Ros,�I�am�going�to�start�with�you�if�I�may.��The�Chancellor�[Rt�Hon�George�

Osborne�MP]�has�announced�a�localised�retention�of�business�rates�which�is�going�to�provide�a�steady�stream�

of�income�from�businesses�for�the�delivery�of�public�services,�and�obviously�it�will�give�businesses�by�default�

quite�a�powerful�voice�in�the�delivery�of�public�services.��Does�that�not�make�BIDs�obsolete?���

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

It�is�an�interesting�question�and�one�that�we�are�

debating�as�an�industry,�but�certainly�my�view�is�that�there�is�always�an�opportunity�to�do�more,�better.��

Certainly�Kingston�is�very�keen�to�retain�its�business�rates�because�we�have�a�particularly�successful�business�

community,�but�I�believe�that�it�is�not�about�being�obsolete.��It�goes�back�to�what�I�said�earlier.��I�do�not�think�

it�needs�to�be�either/or,�the�local�authority�or�a�BID.��There�is�always�the�opportunity�to�work�better�together,�

and�there�are�always�things�that�businesses�will�want�above�and�beyond�what�their�business�rates�can�deliver,�

and�whether�that�is�security�or�whether�that�is�development,�still,�there�is�a�role.��I�should�say�it�is�not�BIDs�for�

BIDs’�sake.��That�is�not�what�I�am�promoting�today.��I�am�promoting�BIDs�as�a�model�for�sustainable�funding�in�

an�area�if�the�businesses�in�that�community�choose�it.��Time�will�tell,�and�certain�areas�will�decide�whether�or�

not�they�want�to�pursue�their�local�authorities�because�more�of�their�business�rates�is�being�retained,�but�in�my�

own�personal�opinion,�there�will�always�be�an�opportunity�to�do�more,�better.���

�

Page 39



�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Do�you�think�that�that�retention�of�business�rates�will�provide�a�focus�at�local�

government�or�an�enhanced�focus�at�local�government�level�towards�the�business�community?��The�old�adage�

that�‘he�who�pays�the�piper�calls�the�tune’�has�a�degree�of�relevance�here.��When�you�are�a�residential�

population�or�a�significant�funder,�you�listen�to�them.��When�the�Government�is�also�a�significant�funder,�you�

listen�to�them,�and�when�businesses�are�not,�you�perhaps�do�not�listen�as�intently�as�the�other�two�funding�

streams.��Do�you�think�that�that�may�well�mean�that�there�is�a�convergence�of�function?��I�am�not�going�to�say�

‘make�obsolete’,�but�there�is�going�to�be�a�convergence�of�function�between�what�the�BIDs�do�and�what�local�

government�will�increasingly�do�in�the�future.�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Possibly,�but�it�is�still�very�important�that,�whether�it�is�

the�residents’�views�or�the�businesses’�views,�they�feel�that�they�can�trust�the�body�that�they�are�feeding�into,�

and�I�feel�that�the�BID�community�offers�businesses�that�trust,�that�independent�representation.��There�are�

many�issues�that�affect�a�town�centre,�and�very�often�I�find�myself�representing�businesses�that�do�not�want�to�

come�forward�on�their�own,�and�want�to�approach�it�more�as�a�sector.��There�is�a�need�to�ensure�that�both�

residents�feel�represented�and�businesses�feel�represented,�because�they�will�not�always�agree,�and�that�is�the�

benefit�of�democracy.��We�have�to�look�at�all�the�parties’�opinions�and�views�to�come�out�with�what�is�best�for�

all.��I�suppose�my�only�fear�really�is�that�by�bringing�them�as�equal�parties�to�the�local�authority,�it�could�be�

quite�a�challenge�for�the�local�authority.��Who�do�they�favour�and�how�are�they�going�to�make�that�choice?��It�

is�an�interesting�debate.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��Cllr�Nicholson,�should�businesses�be�able�to�have�a�vote�in�local�government�

elections,�like�they�do�in�the�City�of�London?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��Because�their�business�rates�are�

all�financing�local�services?���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:��They�are�stakeholders.��Therefore,�increasingly�they�will�be�paying�for�the�delivery�

of�local�services�in�their�area,�and�decisions�made�in�the�council�chamber�affect�them�just�as�they�affect�the�

resident�population.��They�pay�the�tax,�just�like�residents.��They�are�physically�located,�just�like�residents.��They�

have�a�dog�in�the�fight,�but�they�do�not�have�a�say.��Is�that�something�that�you�think�ultimately�should�be�

addressed?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):��You�are�running�the�electoral�

reform�agenda�at�the�moment,�so�I�will�leave�that�one�to�you!��We�are�about�to�have�a�million�people�drop�off�

the�electoral�register�and�so�should�we�just�deal�with�the�million�who�are�entitled�to�vote�first?��Sorry,�

Chairman.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

We�might�just�be�removing�a�significant�number�of�duplicates.�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):

Possibly.��Are�you�suggesting�

that�business�owners�are�already�signing�up�on�the�register�and�are�distorting�the�electoral�roll?���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

No,�the�students.��You�and�I�both�know�that�in�parts�of�the�country�with�a�large�

student�population,�those�students�are�often�registered�where�they�study�and�where�their�parents�are.��I�am�

not�suggesting�--�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):

Yes.��No,�it�is�okay,�James.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

I�am�being�a�little�bit�facetious�on�this�because�I�am�very�taken�by�the�point�that�

you�made,�which�was�that�when�local�government�is�firing�on�all�cylinders�it�puts�a�big�question�mark�over�the�

Page 40



�

necessity�for�BIDs�at�all.��Again,�I�am�paraphrasing�your�position�but�that�is�reflective�of�the�point�you�are�

making.��With�that�local�retention�of�business�rates,�I�am�guessing�-�and�I�welcome�your�view�on�this�-�you�feel�

that�probably�would�reinforce�that�symbiotic�relationship�between�local�government�and�business.��Is�that�fair?���

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):

One�would�hope�that�it�would�

encourage�where�encouragement�might�be�needed�-�and�hopefully�endorse,�where�endorsement�is�appropriate�

-�that�relationship�between�a�local�business�community,�whether�it�is�made�up�of�large�businesses�-�industrial,�

for�example�-�or�whether�it�is�smaller�businesses,�and�a�local�authority.���

�

What�I�would�just�flag�up�at�this�point�-�and�this�is�as�much�for�those�who�are,�as�I�say,�local�businesses�and�

those�who�are�part�of�a�BID�as�it�is�about�local�authorities�-�is�that�the�Chancellor�has�been�a�little�vague�about�

what�exactly�this�proposal�is�all�about.��At�the�moment,�if�one�reads�the�script�as�it�currently�stands,�there�is�

every�indication�that�what�is�going�to�happen�here�is�that�business�rates�will�go�towards�the�revenue�of�local�

government�and�there�will�be�a�dramatic�reduction�in�the�Revenue�Support�Grant.���

�

There�are�various�local�services�that�need�to�be�paid�for�that�go�well�above�and�beyond�voluntary,�

non-statutory�services.��At�the�moment�those�services�are�incredibly�high-value,�for�example,�children’s�

services,�children’s�needs,�social�services,�primary�and�secondary�schools�and�environmental�services,�and�that�

includes�all�the�regulatory�functions.��There�is�no�full�cost�recovery�in�any�of�those�activities.��At�the�moment,�it�

is�difficult�to�see�just�quite�where�this�business�rate�stream�is�going�to�be�spent.��I�fear�that�where�we�are�going�

to�end�up�is�that�those�vital�services,�which�are�there�to�support�vulnerable�people�in�real�need�-�from�housing�

need�to�avoiding�destitution,�tackling�poverty�and�tackling�abuse�in�the�community�-�are�going�to�be�the�very�

services�that�will�consume�that�business�rate�revenue�as�far�as�all�the�local�government�institutions�are�

concerned�around�the�country.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

Indulge�me�for�a�minute:�let�us�say�-�and�we�can�argue�perhaps�outside�this�

meeting�-�the�quantum�of�funding�is�maintained�and�all�that�changes�is�the�balance�between�what�is�collected�

locally�and�what�is�received�from�central�Government.��Let�us�say�you�are�not�out�of�pocket,�it�is�just�where�you�

get�the�money�from�that�changes.��Do�you�feel�that�that�will�enhance�the�relationship�between�local�

government�and�local�businesses�by�virtue�of�the�fact�that�there�is�now�a�much�closer�financial�relationship�

between�those�two�organisations?�

�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):

I�would�hope�that�that�would�be�

the�case.��I�am�sure�other�colleagues�in�local�government�from�all�parties�would�say�exactly�that�and�respond�in�

the�same�way.��I�do�think�that�there�is�a�need,�as�I�said�earlier,�for�us�to�collaborate�and�work�quite�closely�

together�in�the�months�ahead�as�the�current�Chancellor’s�plan�is�shaped�and�formed�for�implementation.��He�

clearly�wants�to�implement�this�very�soon�and�I�fear�that�it�may�not�be�all�that�it�is�cracked�up�to�be.��That�is�

all.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

It�strikes�me�that�as�a�borough�you�are�in�a�potentially�outstanding�position�with�

regards�to�local�retention�of�business�rates.��You�have,�by�a�whole�load�of�metrics,�clusters�of�population�within�

the�borough�that�are�in�real,�very�severe�need,�but�you�are�close�to�the�City�of�London.��You�are�close�to�one�of�

the�global�financial�centres.��There�is�a�well-established�series�of�businesses�which�are�potentially�high-value,�

obviously�the�tech�businesses�and�the�high-end�creative�industries,�and�you�have�cereal�bars,�which�is�the�way�

forward.��There�is�huge�business�opportunity�there.��

�

Yours�is�a�borough�where�I�can�see�the�relationship�with�a�vibrant�and�unlocked�business�community�would�be�

a�very�significant�revenue�stream,�which�would�then�be�able�to�be�used�to�support�your�residential�population.��

However,�ultimately�-�and�I�go�back�to�a�slight�repeat�of�a�question�we�had�earlier�on�-�that�being�the�case,�if�

Page 41



�

some�of�those�businesses�were�starting�to�say,�“We�want�you�as�a�borough�to�provide�us�with�faster�digital�

connectivity”,�and�there�are�lots�of�tech�business�in�Hackney�--�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):

Could�I�just�interrupt�briefly?��This�is�a�fascinating�subject,�but�the�subject�of�

today’s�meeting�is�BIDs,�not�the�relationship�between�businesses�collectively�and�local�government,�fascinating�

though�it�is.��It�absolutely�is�a�subject�that�is�going�to�get�a�considerable�airing�over�coming�weeks.��With�all�

due�respect�to�Cllr�Nicholson,�it�might�be�a�more�tightly�focused�question�aimed�at�BID�experts�and�people�

with�BIDs.���

�

James
Cleverly
AM
MP:

Fair�enough.��Speaking�of�which�--�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Just�while�you�were�talking,�I�was�thinking�about�the�

fact�that�obviously,�within�the�BID�context,�a�levy�is�charged�on�the�rateable�value�of�a�property.��Just�because�

you�have�the�biggest�rateable�valued�property�in�the�place,�it�does�not�mean�to�say�your�voice�is�any�stronger�

than�the�property�down�the�road�that�is�paying�£75�a�year�to�be�part�of�that�big�picture.��The�BID�ensures�that�

you�are�offering�a�view�that�is�representative�of�the�whole�business�community.���

�

I�suppose�one�of�my�reservations�about�the�local�authority�taking�on�the�business�rates�is�whether�it�will�be�

that�the�person�that�pays�the�most�gets�heard.��That�is�a�question�that�does�need�to�be�answered.��The�BID�

industry�is�absolutely�about�taking�all�parties’�views�and�then�coming�up�with�an�opinion�that�is�for�the�greater�

good�and�not�just�that�of�one�very�affluent,�particular�business.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):

Sure.��I�will�bring�Julie�in�and�then�I�am�going�to�have�to�ask�a�sweep-up�

question�right�at�the�end.��I�am�afraid�we�are�going�to�have�to�stop�because�we�are�pushing�our�time�limit.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):

Very�quickly,�it�is�interesting,�this�Chancellor’s�

announcement.��I�published�on�my�LinkedIn�blog�last�week�the�question,�“Radical�shake-up�or�shift�of�

liability?”��Without�the�detail,�we�do�not�really�know�what�difference�it�is�going�to�make.���

�

In�answer�to�your�first�point,�I�certainly�hope�it�does�reconnect�business�communities�better�to�the�local�

authorities�because�it�desperately�needs�doing.��Does�that�mean�that�we�lose�BIDs?��No,�it�does�not.��

Throughout�all�of�what�we�have�been�talking�about�-�you�referred�to�it�as�‘platinum�service’;�we�have�all�

referred�to�it�as�different�things�-�there�is�for�the�foreseeable�future�in�this�country,�with�the�level�of�public�

sector�investment�that�we�have,�at�best�probably�a�bronze�service.��Where�businesses�wish�to�see�a�platinum�

service,�they�will�be�willing�to�invest�in�it�and�they�will�be�willing�to�invest�in�it�through�a�BID�model�that�then�

creates�the�conduit�of�that�voice�back�into�a�local�authority.��Local�authorities�will�benefit�from�having�a�BID�in�

place�to�have�that�communication�process.�

�

I�just�wanted�to�raise�two�more�points�related�to�that,�though.��What�worries�me�is�the�redistribution�

mechanism.��We�do�not�know�what�it�is�going�to�look�like�yet�and�without�being�clear�what�that�is�going�to�

look�like�--�local�authorities�have�had�the�ability�now�at�only�50%�cost�to�vary�their�business�rates�and�they�

have�not�done�it�because�they�cannot�afford�to.��At�100%�cost,�are�they�really�going�to�do�it?��We�need�to�see�

what�the�detail�is.���

�

Really,�it�is�more�about�two�other�things.��There�is�a�potential�unintended�consequence�of�relaxation�of�

planning�to�see�out-of-town�investment�because�it�will�bring�the�business�rate�revenues�in,�and�that�is�a�worry�

for�our�town�centres�without�a�doubt.���

�

Secondly,�on�a�second�point�but�desperately�related,�is�that�a�bigger�concern�for�the�relationship�between�

business�and�local�authority,�or�at�least�a�focus,�should�be�what�is�happening�with�combining�authorities�and�

Page 42



�

the�vast�reduction�in�physical�resources�and�people�on�the�ground;�not�money�but�people�and�skills.��That�is�

having�a�massive�effect�in�London.��I�am�not�saying�it�is�having�a�negative�effect�but�it�is�having�an�effect.��We�

have�to�open�up�and�manage�because�we�are�no�longer�seeing�33�local�authorities�with�33�local�authority�sets�

of�teams;�we�are�seeing�a�whole�load�of�combined�services,�a�load�of�different�places�and�just�a�client�role.��

That�then�prevents�the�ability�and�the�resource�to�have�a�relationship�role.��That�is�where�we�bring�BIDs�back�

in.��They�are�going�to�need�BIDs�to�have�that�relationship�role.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):

You�are�completely�right�about�the�detail.��I�was�in�the�room�when�the�

Chancellor�gave�his�speech�and�made�that�announcement�and�it�all�sounded�terribly�exciting�at�the�time,�but�in�

preparation�for�today�I�reread�his�speech�in�its�entirety�and�there�is�an�awful�lot�of�detail�that�needs�to�come�

out�before�it�is�a�reality.��There�is�a�whole�load�of�questions,�some�of�which�James�[Cleverly�AM�MP]�was�

beginning�to�touch�on�with�Cllr�Nicholson,�which�will�be�played�out�over�the�coming�weeks�and�months.���

�

There�is�a�final�sweep-up�question�I�would�like�to�ask�all�panel�members�to�answer.��The�current�Mayor�is�very�

keen�to�push�the�creation�of�BIDs�and�to�act�in�a�co-ordinating�role.��Is�that�something�that�the�future�Mayor�

from�May�next�year�should�continue�or�should�he�or�she�-�and�it�will�be�a�‘he’�-�take�a�different�path?��I�will�

start�with�you,�Ros,�and�work�down.�

�

Ros
Morgan
(Chief
Executive,
Kingstonfirst
BID):

Absolutely,�the�Mayor�should�support�the�concept�of�

BIDs�and�what�BIDs�can�achieve.��I�would�-�and�I�am�referring�to�the�question�that�was�on�the�documentation�-�

not�support�the�Mayor�setting�targets�for�BIDs�because,�as�I�said�earlier,�it�should�not�be�a�given�that�a�place�

will�have�a�BID.��If�an�area�wants�to�have�a�BID,�it�should�only�then�come�through.���

�

Certainly�from�my�perspective,�the�Mayor�and�the�Mayor’s�family�absolutely�need�to�have�a�much�greater�

understanding�of�BIDs�now�and�BIDs�in�the�future.��They�really�need�to�be�ensuring�that�there�is�a�senior�

person�who�has�ownership�of�this�conversation�at�a�senior�level,�a�bit�like�the�local�authority:�a�custodian�of�the�

BID.��Also�at�a�very�senior�level�in�the�Mayor’s�office.��I�have�had�conversations�with�Kit�Malthouse�[AM�MP,�

former�Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise]�quite�a�long�time�ago�where,�through�lots�of�these�debates�

and�conversations,�I�established�that�there�was�a�lack�of�understanding�and�appreciation�of�the�ability�of�BIDS.��

We�need�better�communication�and�better�understanding.�

�

Anna
Minton
(Writer,
Journalist
and
Reader
in
Architecture,
University
of
East
London):

You�will�

not�be�surprised�to�hear�me�say�that�the�policy�needs�serious,�critical�review.��Growth,�representation�and�

democracy�are�not�compatible�under�the�BIDs�model,�I�am�afraid.��The�policy�was�rolled�out�uncritically�and�we�

are�reaping�the�consequences.��The�business�rates�conversation�is�massively�important.��It�is�probably�the�area�

where�all�of�us�around�the�table�agree�that�we�have�to�make�sure�it�does�not�become�a�smokescreen�for�

relaxing�out-of-town�regulations�and�funnelling�money�into�essential�services�rather�than�the�high�street.��That�

is�the�only�area�we�agree�on.��BIDs�should�be�critically�reviewed�and�I�am�afraid�that�we�should�go�back�to�the�

drawing�board.�

�

Debbie
Jackson
(Assistant
Director
–
Regeneration,
GLA):

I�very�much�agree�with�the�points�that�

Ros�[Morgan]�made.��The�Mayor�should�continue�to�support�local�stewardship�and�governance�in�all�its�forms�

but�still�show�strong�support�for�BIDs.��I�echo�Ros�in�that�the�target�has�been�very�helpful�to�date�at�the�stage�

we�are�in�London’s�life�cycle�of�BIDs,�but�logic�dictates�there�comes�a�point�where�going�after�more�BIDs�is�not�

necessarily�the�right�place�to�focus�the�Mayor’s�activity.��It�is�about�strategic�help�and�support�continuing�on�

some�of�the�work�that�we�have�done�now�and�high-level�support�from�the�mayoral�team�for�BIDs.��I�should�

mention�the�London�Enterprise�Panel,�which�has�a�strong�role�on�BIDs�at�the�moment.��That�is�also�important�

to�continue.�

�

Page 43



�

Cllr
Guy
Nicholson
(Cabinet
Member
for
Regeneration,
LB
Hackney):

I�would�hope�that�the�next�

Mayor,�of�course,�is�there�for�all�Londoners�and�that�we�will�be�looking�at�it�through�that�prism.���

�

On�a�parting�note,�one�feels�and�senses�that�whether�it�involves�a�BID�or�whether�it�does�not�involve�a�BID�at�

the�moment,�this�landscape�that�we�are�looking�at�is�now�ripe�to�evolve�and�move�on�to�the�next�step.��The�

next�Mayor�of�London�has�a�great�opportunity�to�start�to�realise�that�coming�together�of�growth,�economy�and�

prosperity�with�governance,�accountability�and�transparency.���

�

There�is�a�real�opportunity�to�build�out�that�relationship�between�businesses�and�the�wider�residential�

community,�as�well�as�local�and�of�course�regional�government�acting�in�its�role�as�a�curator�of�all�of�this,�with�

local�government�being�around�that�table�as�a�representative�and�regulatory�body.��There�is�a�relationship�that�

can�be�formed�around�that�-�and�perhaps�I�am�looking�at�it�through�too�much�of�a�Hackney�prism�-�through�a�

networked�and�social�media-savvy�generation�of�entrepreneurs�of�workers�and�a�wider�community�that�is�

growing�up�in�that�connected�environment.��In�there�is�a�proposition�for�a�new�form�of�BID�to�come�forward.��

The�policy�coming�from�the�Government�for�2020�about�some�kind�of�redistribution�of�business�rates�revenue�

and�so�on�might�perhaps�be�an�opportunity�to�realise�that�new�iteration�of�the�BID�for�the�rest�of�this�new�

term.�

�

Dr
Julie
Grail
(Chief
Executive,
British
BIDs):

I�will�try�to�answer�in�shorthand�because�I�concur�with�lots�

of�what�people�have�said,�particularly�Debbie�[Jackson].��It�is�important�to�recognise�we�have�been�on�a�

journey�of�evolution�of�BIDs.��It�has�been�really�helpful�having�the�slight�carrot/stick�approach�of�a�target�

number�and�a�development�grant�scheme�that�has�helped�the�facilitation�of�set-up.���

�

I�would�particularly�say�-�not�to�sound�pedantic�-�that�you�said�‘push’.��Absolutely,�the�Mayor�should�not�be�

pushing�BIDs;�the�Mayor�should�be�enabling�the�concept�to�develop�in�the�locations�that�are�relevant.��It�is�a�

really�important�distinction.��We�should�be�focusing�more�on�quality�now�than�quantity.��We�should�not�just�be�

rushing�to�get�more�and�more.��I�would�be�concerned�to�see,�in�the�next�[Mayoral]�term,�another�number.��It�

was�50�for�this�term.��I�would�be�worried�about�seeing�another�number.��We�should�be�focusing�more�on�

quality.���

�

I�particularly�also�encourage�a�better�appreciation�and�understanding,�as�Ros�[Morgan]�has�said,�about�what�is�

going�on�in�the�46�we�have�now�and�a�better�relationship�and�dialogue�with�them.��It�is�not�strong�enough.��

We�have�a�very�large�group�of�BIDs�out�here�now,�as�I�described,�of�different�types,�shapes�and�sizes�and�with�

different�issues�going�on.��There�is�no�longer�a�coherent�voice�coming�from�the�BID�community�back�in�to�you.��

Working�on�creating�some�kind�of�coherent�and�inclusive�voice�of�all�of�the�BIDs�in�to�you,�where�you�have�a�

better�level�of�understanding,�and�at�a�senior�level�of�the�Mayor’s�team,�will�really�pay�dividends�in�creating�

quality�relationships�across�the�capital.��Putting�a�target�on�it�I�would�be�very�concerned�about.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):

Can�I�thank�all�five�of�our�guests.�It�has�been�a�really�good�discussion.�

�

�

Page 44



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Summary
List
of
Actions
�
Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
3
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Regeneration�Committee.�




2.
 Recommendation
�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
actions
arising
from
the
previous
meeting
of
the


Committee.








Action
Arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
13
October
2015


Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action





6.
 Business
Improvement
Districts





During�the�discussion,�Dr�Julie�Grail,�Chief�Executive,�

British�BIDS,�offered�to�share�British�BID’s�response�to�

the�Department�for�Communities�and�Local�

Government’s�consultation,�Review�of�British�

Improvement�Districts.�




�

�

Completed.��The�

response�has�been�

circulated�to�the�

Committee�Members.�

�

�

Senior�

Committee�

Officer�

7.
 Work
Programme
(Transport-led
Regeneration)


 

The�Committee�agreed�to�delegate�authority�to�the�

Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair�and�

other�Members�of�the�Committee,�to�agree�the�

Committee’s�output�arising�from�its�scrutiny�

investigation�of�transport-led�regeneration.�

�

�

�

In�progress�

�

�

Scrutiny�

Manager�







Agenda Item 4

Page 45



        

3.
 Legal
Implications



3.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�
�

�

4.
 Financial
Implications




4.1 �� There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�
�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

�
None�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Joanna�Brown�and�Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6559�

Email:� joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

�

�

Page 46



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:�Intensification
Areas
Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee


Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

�




1.
 Summary



�

1.1 This�report�provides�background�information�to�the�

on�Intensification�Areas�(IAs).







2.
 Recommendations�
�

2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
a
discussion
with
invited
guests


regarding
Intensification
Areas




2.2� That
the
Committee
delegate

Chair,
to
agree
the
arrangements
for
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
an
Intensification
Area


on
1
December
2015.







3.
 Background



�
3.1� The�Committee�has�agreed�to�hold�a�meeting�to�discuss�I

�

3.2�� At�its�meeting�on�13�October�2015,�the�

2015�for�a�site�visit�to�one�of�the�London�Plan’s�I

support�its�scrutiny�review�of�IAs
�



4.
 Issues
for
Consideration

4.1 In�the�London�Plan,�the�Mayor�has�designated�seven�I

Haringey�Heartlands/Woodgreen;�Holborn;�Kidbrooke;�Mill�Hill�East;�South�Wimbledon/Colliers�

Wood;�and�West�Hampstead�Interchange.

could�accommodate�additional�homes�and�jobs�growth.�

are�typically�bigger,�with�a�larger�quantum

infrastructure�to�facilitate�growth

4.2 The�Committee�plans�to�discuss�the�rationale�for�identifying�IAs,�the�G

(GLA’s)�selection�process,�and�the�impact�of�the�designation�on�regeneration�in�the�seven�areas.�Th

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Intensification
Areas

Regeneration
Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat� Date:
3
Novem



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�

provides�background�information�to�the�Committee�for�its�discussion

s).


That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
a
discussion
with
invited
guests


Intensification
Areas,
and
notes
the
discussion.



That
the
Committee
delegates
authority
to
the
Chairman,
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair,
to
agree
the
arrangements
for
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
an
Intensification
Area


The�Committee�has�agreed�to�hold�a�meeting�to�discuss�IAs�as�part�of�its�201

At�its�meeting�on�13�October�2015,�the�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�1�December�

site�visit�to�one�of�the�London�Plan’s�Intensification�Areas�(IAs)�on�1

utiny�review�of�IAs.�

Issues
for
Consideration��

In�the�London�Plan,�the�Mayor�has�designated�seven�IAs.��These�are:�Farringdon/Smithfield;�

Haringey�Heartlands/Woodgreen;�Holborn;�Kidbrooke;�Mill�Hill�East;�South�Wimbledon/Colliers�

Hampstead�Interchange.��They�are�areas�with�adequate�transport�infrastructure�that�

could�accommodate�additional�homes�and�jobs�growth.��IAs�differ�to�Opportunity�Areas

a�larger�quantum�of�new�development�potential,�and

to�facilitate�growth.��

The�Committee�plans�to�discuss�the�rationale�for�identifying�IAs,�the�Greater�London�Authority�

selection�process,�and�the�impact�of�the�designation�on�regeneration�in�the�seven�areas.�Th

 

November
2015


Committee�for�its�discussion�with�invited�guests�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
a
discussion
with
invited
guests


authority
to
the
Chairman,
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair,
to
agree
the
arrangements
for
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
an
Intensification
Area


its�2015/16�work�programme.��

agreed�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�1�December�

on�1�December�2015�to�

:�Farringdon/Smithfield;�

Haringey�Heartlands/Woodgreen;�Holborn;�Kidbrooke;�Mill�Hill�East;�South�Wimbledon/Colliers�

transport�infrastructure�that�

differ�to�Opportunity�Areas�(OAs);�OAs�

of�new�development�potential,�and�may�require�additional�

reater�London�Authority�

selection�process,�and�the�impact�of�the�designation�on�regeneration�in�the�seven�areas.�The�

Agenda Item 5

Page 47



        

Committee�will�use�its�meeting�on�3�November�2015�primarily�to�receive�a�briefing�from�a�member�of�

the�GLA’s�London�Plan�team,�and�it�will�invite�other�guests�to�comment�on�the�role�and�

effectiveness�of�IAs.��

�

3
November
discussion�

4.3 The�following�guests�have�been�invited�to�the�Committee’s�meeting�on�3�November�2015:�

• Darren�Richards,�Strategic�Planning�Manager,�GLA;��

• Stephen�Kelly,��Assistant�Director�for�Planning,�LB�Haringey;�and�

• Alex�Williams,�Director�of�Borough�Planning,�TfL;�

• Faraz�Baber,�Head�of�Planning�and�Development�Policy,�London�First.��

Other�guests�will�be�invited�as�appropriate.�

�

4.4 The�meeting�will�look�to�explore�the�following�issues:�

• The�rationale�for�designating�IAs;��

• How�IAs�relate�to�other�Mayoral�zonal�models,�such�as�Opportunity�Areas,�Housing�Zones,�and�

Growth�Areas;��

• The�distinct�roles�of�the�GLA,�boroughs,�and�TfL�in�supporting�regeneration�in�the�IAs;�

• The�level�of�support�provided�by�TfL�and�the�GLA�to�boroughs�to�progress�development�in�IAs;�

• The�progress�of�development�and�the�difference�IA�designation�has�made,�and��

• The�future�for�IAs�in�the�next�mayoral�term.��

1
December
site
visit�

4.5 The�Committee�plans�to�visit�an�Intensification�Area.�Members�will�meet�with�the�relevant�local�

authority�(and�other�partners,�as�appropriate)�to�receive�a�briefing�on�regeneration�in�the�area.��It�is�

recommended�that�the�Committee�delegates�authority�to�the�Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�

Deputy�Chair,�to�agree�the�arrangements�for�the�site�visit.�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�





6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�
� �

Page 48



        

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

None�
�
� �

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:��None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

 

Subject:�Regeneration
Programme�




Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of


This
report
will
be
considered
in






1.
 Summary




1.1 The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its

�
�

2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the

Assembly
year.





�
3.
 Background




3.1 At�the�Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�13�May�2015

June�2015�and�March�2016�for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�

site�visits.�

�

3.2 The�Committee�receives�an�update�on�its�work�programme�at�eac
�

3.3 At�its�meeting�on�2�July�2015

Assembly�year.�
�

3.4 At�its�meeting�on�13�October�2015,�the�Committee�

2015/16�Assembly�year.��The�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�1�December�2015�for�a�

site�visit�to�an�Intensification�Area�and�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�6�January�2016�for�an�informal�

briefing�on�Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2.��The�Committee’s�next�formal�meeting�will�be�

2016.�

�

�


 


                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Regeneration�Committee
Work


Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat� Date:
3

This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�

The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting

notes
the
work
programme
for
the
remainder
of
the


Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�13�May�2015,�the�Assembly�agreed�nine�slots

for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�

The�Committee�receives�an�update�on�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting.

5,�the�Committee�identified�its�initial�priorities�for�the�2015/16

At�its�meeting�on�13�October�2015,�the�Committee�agreed�its�priorities�for�the�remainder�of�the�

The�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�1�December�2015�for�a�

site�visit�to�an�Intensification�Area�and�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�6�January�2016�for�an�informal�

briefing�on�Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2.��The�Committee’s�next�formal�meeting�will�be�

 

Committee
Work


3
November
2015


work�programme�at�each�meeting.�����

remainder
of
the
2015/16


,�the�Assembly�agreed�nine�slots�between�

for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�

h�meeting.�

initial�priorities�for�the�2015/16�

for�the�remainder�of�the�

The�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�1�December�2015�for�a�

site�visit�to�an�Intensification�Area�and�to�use�its�meeting�slot�on�6�January�2016�for�an�informal�

briefing�on�Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2.��The�Committee’s�next�formal�meeting�will�be�on�2�February�

Agenda Item 6

Page 51



        

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration��

�

The�Committee’s�work�programme�

�

4.1 The�ongoing�and�proposed�topics�for�inclusion�in�the�Committee’s�work�programme�are�set�out�

below:�

�

4.2 Transport-led
regeneration�

The�Committee’s�investigation�on�transport-led�regeneration�examines�the�Mayor�and�Transport�for�

London’s�(Tf)�approach�to�investing�in�transport�improvements�to�support�local�regeneration.�

Decisions�made�by�TfL�can�play�a�central�role�in�helping�to�regenerate�neighbourhoods�that�may�

have�struggled�to�attract�new�business�and�investment�and�to�provide�a�high�quality�of�life�for�their�

residents.�In�2012�the�Mayor�launched�a�£300�million�TfL�fund�–�increased�to�£360�million�in�2014�–�

specifically�for�regeneration�projects.�The�Committee�will�review�the�basis�for�setting�up�a�fund�

within�TfL�specifically�for�regeneration�and�how�the�criteria�used�to�allocate�this�funding�differs�from�

that�used�for�other�TfL�investment�decisions.�The�Committee�will�assess�whether�the�investments�are�

likely�to�support�wider�regeneration�goals�and�whether�there�is�a�case�for�investing�more�of�TfL’s�

resources�in�similar�projects�because�of�the�catalytic�effects�such�decisions�can�have.��The�Committee�

used�its�meeting�slot�in�June�for�a�site�visit�to�Vauxhall,�Nine�Elms�and�Battersea,�and�it�held�a�

meeting�with�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�Transport,�and�guests�from�TfL,�The�London�School�of�

Economics�and�Political�Science,�and�Cathedral�Group.�

�

4.3 Business
Improvement
Districts�

This�investigation�will�examine�the�changing�and�expanding�role�of�BIDs.��A�number�of�factors,�

including�local�authority�budgetary�pressures,�and�recommendations�from�Mary�Portas’�review�of�

high�streets�have�seen�many�BIDs�extend�their�activities�from�cleaning,�greening�and�security,�to�

playing�a�larger�role�in�strategic�town�centre�design,�and�in�some�cases,�taking�responsibility�for�

running�some�local�services.��The�Mayor�has�a�target�to�establish�50�BIDs�in�London�by�the�end�of�

the�mayoral�term.�BIDs�vary�in�size�and�remit;�ranging�from�large�Central�London�BIDs,�to�town�

centre,�industrial�and�district�centre�BIDs.��The�Committee’s�review�will�examine�how�and�where�BIDs�

can�add�value�in�regeneration�schemes,�and�ways�that�the�Mayor�and�boroughs�can�maximise�the�

contribution�BIDs�make�to�regeneration.��The�Committee�visited�two�BIDs,�and�held�a�formal�

meeting�on�13�October�2015,�together�with�inviting�written�submissions�from�BIDs�and�wider�

stakeholders.�

�

4.4� The�Committee�may�wish�to�explore�opportunities�to�disseminate�its�scrutiny�report�on�BIDS,�which�

is�expected�to�be�launched�early�in�2016.��More�details�will�be�provided�to�the�Committee�at�its�

meeting�on�2�February�2016.�

��

4.5 Intensification
Areas��

The�Committee�plans�to�examine�the�progress�of�regeneration�within�areas�designated�as�

Intensification�Areas�(IAs)�in�the�London�Plan.��The�Mayor�has�designated�seven�IAs�as�places�with�

good�transport�accessibility�which�can�accommodate�higher�density�development.��In�this�review,�the�

Committee�will�explore�the�rationale�for�designating�IAs;�how�IAs�relate�to�other�Mayoral�zonal�

models,�such�as�Opportunity�Areas,�Housing�Zones,�and�Growth�Areas;�the�progress�of�development�

and�the�difference�IA�designation�has�made�to�areas,�and�the�future�role�for�IAs�in�the�next�mayoral�

term.�The�Committee�will�invite�a�member�of�the�Greater�London�Authority’s�(GLA)�London�Plan�

team�to�provide�a�briefing.�Members�may�also�wish�to�invite�representatives�of�boroughs�with�IA�

Page 52



        

designation�to�attend�the�meeting,�along�with�a�representative�from�a�third�party�organisation.��The�

report�at�Agenda�Item�5�gives�more�information�about�this�topic.�

�

4.5� As�agreed�at�its�meeting�on�13�October�2015,�the�Committee�will�use�its�meeting�slot�on�

1�December�2015�for�a�site�visit�to�an�IA.��
�

4.6 Crossrail
and
Crossrail
2�

Crossrail�is�widely�considered�as�an�important�catalyst�for�regeneration.�The�construction�of�Crossrail�

is�expected�to�generate�£5.5�billion�additional�residential�and�commercial�value�along�the�route�

between�2012�and�2021.1��New�and�quicker�links�are�leading�to�a�rise�in�land�values,�and�

encouraging�development�at�and�near�Crossrail�stations.��Crossrail�Ltd�has�agreed�to�provide�the�

Committee�with�a�briefing�on�over-station�development�at�an�informal�meeting.��This�briefing�will�

complement�the�work�the�Committee�is�undertaking�on�transport-led�regeneration.��The�briefing�will�

cover:�Crossrail’s�vision�for�local�regeneration;�its�partnership�approach�with�stakeholders,�including�

boroughs�and�community�groups;�and�community�infrastructure�within�development�at�and�around�

Crossrail�stations,�including�affordable�housing.��

�

4.7 The�Committee�will�also�receive�a�briefing�from�Crossrail�2.��The�briefing�will�cover�the�regeneration�

case�for�Crossrail�2,�and�the�work�of�the�Crossrail�2�Growth�Commission,�launched�in�August�2015.���

�

4.8� The�Committee�will�use�its�meeting�slot�on�6�January�2016�for�an�informal�briefing,�as�detailed�

above.�

�

4.9 The
work
of
the
Old
Oak
and
Park
Royal
Development
Corporation
�

Scrutiny�of�the�Mayoral�Development�Corporations�(MDCs;�provided�for�in�the�2011�Localism�Act)�

forms�part�of�the�Committee’s�terms�of�reference.��The�Committee�has�carried�out�annual�progress�

checks�of�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation’s�(LLDC)�work�to�deliver�the�Olympic�

regeneration�legacy�in�2013�and�2014.�The�Mayor�established�the�second�MDC�–�Old�Oak�and�Park�

Royal�Development�Corporation�(OPDC)�–�on�1�April�2015.��As�the�OPDC�nears�completion�of�its�

first�year,�the�Committee�will�invite�the�Chairman�and�Chief�Executive�to�discuss�its�activities�to�date,�

and�its�priorities�for�the�next�year.�Members�will�invite�the�OPDC�to�set�out�its�plans�for�the�physical,�

economic�and�social�regeneration�of�Old�Oak;�its�budget�and�funding�for�physical�and�social�

infrastructure;�and�how�it�is�working�with�the�boroughs�and�the�other�partners�with�whom�it�is�

engaged.��The�Committee�will�also�invite�the�Chair�of�the�LLDC�to�join�a�broader�discussion�on�what�

has�been�achieved�by�both�MDCs�in�their�first�term.��The�Committee�will�examine�the�effectiveness�

of�the�MDC�model,�lessons�learned�from�the�LLDC,�and�practice�sharing�between�both�organisations.��

 

4.10 Social
infrastructure
and
community
engagement
�

The�Committee�often�considers�questions�about�how�the�Mayor�and�local�authorities�determine�the�

social�infrastructure�provided�through�regeneration�programmes.�The�Committee�will�use�its�meeting�

slot�on�1�March�2016�to�examine�how�local�communities�are�engaged�in�helping�determine�what�

social�infrastructure�areas�need.�The�meeting�will�hear�from�a�number�of�different�regeneration�

projects�to�gather�evidence�about�what�works�and�what�does�not�work�in�community�engagement.�

This�cross-cutting�thematic�work�will�inform�the�Committee’s�work�in�the�next�Assembly�year.�

 

 

� �

                                                 
1
 GVA Crossrail Property Impact Study www.gva.co.uk/regeneration/crossrail-property-impact-study  

Page 53



        

Remaining�meeting�slots��

�

4.11 The�schedule�for�the�Committee’s�remaining�meetings�in�2015/16�Assembly�year�is�shown�below:��

�

Date
 Proposed
Main
item
of
business


Tuesday�1�December�

2015�
Intensification�Areas�site�visit�–�no�formal�Committee�meeting�

Wednesday�6�January�

2016�

Informal�briefing�on�Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2�–�no�formal�Committee�

meeting�

Tuesday�2�February�

2016�
Old�Oak�and�Park�Royal�Development�Corporation�(OPDC)�

Tuesday�1�March�2016� Social�infrastructure�and�community�engagement��






�

�

Other�topics��

�

4.12 In�addition,�from�time�to�time�the�Committee�may�decide�to�hold�informal�meetings�with�

stakeholders�and�respond�to�consultations�that�are�relevant�to�the�Committee’s�work.�The�

Committee�will�discuss�any�such�activities�as�they�arise.�







5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.








6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

��

None�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

�

Page 54


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Appendix 1 - Transcript - BIDS

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Intensification Areas
	6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme

